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CHAIR’S REVIEW

The financial year ending 31 July 2022 has continued to be one of challenge for the Royal Conservatoire of
Scotland (RCS) both as an institution but also for the individuals who create this special community. In the past
year many of the challenges caused by the pandemic have been replaced by a complex range of socio-economic
and political factors, domestically and internationally. We continue to live in times of many uncertainties and
continue to deal with the consequences of that. Against this backdrop it is of tremendous credit to both its staff and
students that RCS has maintained a global ranking in the top five of the QS World University Rankings for
Performing Arts. This speaks volumes for the hard work and resilience of the entire RCS community and means
that the 175" anniversary year of this wonderful institution’s foundation can be celebrated with pride.

In financial terms the Conservatoire has performed well, given the circumstances. While the overall deficit was
£2,084K, this includes a non-cash FRS pension charge of £2,327K giving a surplus of £243K which is reflected in
the positive cash movement of £160K. Significant changes during the year included: the embedding of
sustainability goals throughout the organisation; the positive impact of investment in fundraising which in turn has
enabled the creation of the Innovation Studio; good REF results as our research community increases, and further
positive progress with the Transitions programme.

Cash and general investment balances remain healthy at £15,164K while the increase in the long-term discount
rate has removed the pension liability and points to a reducing pension deficit going forward which will mitigate
the budgeted deficit for 2022/23. This coming year however will continue to be difficult in financial terms as a
direct result of a stand-still government settlement (i.e. a reduction in real terms) against an inflation-driven
increase in our cost base. That said, the strategic thinking invested in the Conservatoire is of a high order
including a number of changes to deliver growth. As well as undertaking a review of the undergraduate
curriculum and considering future real estate requirements, strengthening the future long-term sustainability of
the institution is always high on the agenda.

Once again, | must give huge credit to the leadership team, as well as staff and students across the RCS community
who have worked together in an engaged, committed, and collaborative way which will hopefully continue as the
2023-30 strategy plan is finalised by summer 2023.

The senior management team has been strengthened by the welcome appointment of Gemma Bodinetz as Director
of Drama, Dance, Production and Film, with Helen McVey returning to her core role as Director of Business
Development. A refreshed Board of Governors has functioned extremely well with further change to follow the
resignation of Professor Mark O'Thomas, Pro Vice Chancellor of the University of Greenwich on his appointment
to be Principal of LAMDA and the retiral of Agnes Robson, Vice Chair and Senior Independent Governor who has
been awarded an honorary fellowship in recognition of 10 years of exceptional service.

RCS is also delighted to have Nicola Benedetti CBE as the new Honorary President, taking over from Sir Cameron
Mackintosh. Dr Bridget McConnell CBE has been appointed as an Honorary Vice President of the Conservatoire,
joining Lord Vallance of Tummel in this role. As part of this time of change, Lord Gill has also stood down as an
Honorary Vice President. | thank them all for their service of RCS past, present and future and wish them well.

| will be stepping down as Chair at the AGM on 8 December to be succeeded by the highly respected Professor
Dorothy Miell, formerly Vice Principal of Edinburgh University with several years of experience on both our
Academic Board as an external lay member and on the Board of Governors. My thanks are due to the staff and
Board — and especially to the brilliant students - of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland, who have made it both an
honour and a pleasure to have served in this role since 2016.

I believe that the Conservatoire is fortunate in its people, led by an outstanding Principal in Professor Jeff Sharkey,
ully supported by Deputy Principal Dr Lois Fitch, and is well positioned for our current and future challenges.

Nick Kuer?gnerg

Chair



Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

REPORT OF THE GOVERNORS

The Governors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2022,
Constitution

RCS is a company limited by guarantee and having capital divided into shares with a Company Registration
No0.SC04703. It was incorporated as the Glasgow Athenaeum in December 1900, having been established in 1847 to
provide further education for adults in the fields of commerce, science, and the arts. It is now an institution of higher
education and was awarded degree awarding powers for taught degrees by the Privy Council on 13 May 1994.

The terms of the constitution, membership, powers and proceedings of the Board of Governors are currently set down
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association as varied by, and in conformity with the provisions of, The Royal
Conservatoire of Scotland Order of Council 2014 No. 268 as amended by The Royal Conservatoire of Scotland
Amendment Order of Council 2020 No.3.

RCS is recognised by HMRC as a charity and is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator —
No.SC015855.

Corporate Structure

A representative of each of the key constituencies of RCS holds a block of shares. Those constituencies are: students
represented by the President of the Students’ Union; staff represented by their elected staff Governors; senior
management and Academic Board represented by the Principal; and the Chair representing the Board of Governors
and wider society. A descendant of one of RCS’s philanthropic founding families also retains a shareholding.
Shareholders are entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting to which all staff, students and a wide range of external
stakeholders are invited with the opportunity to ask questions.

Principal activity

The principal activity of RCS is the provision of teaching, learning and research in, and for, the performing arts.
Programmes offered range from short courses for young children through to PhD and include all genres of the
performing arts and education.

Vision

A community that nurtures, supports and celebrates inclusive art making from grass roots to world-leading performance
and production.

Mission

For our education and research in the arts to be the catalyst to shape the future of art forms, artists and society

Values

Creative courage
Compassion
Constructive challenge
Curiosity

Craft, rigour and talent
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Work has continued over the past year on the development of the Strategic Plan 2023-30 during which time the
Board, Academic Board and senior management have evaluated the impact on RCS' strategic priorities in the
post-Brexit and post-pandemic environment within the context of the rapidly changing economic landscape.

The vision, mission, values and objectives of our new plan can be viewed and will be evaluated through three
perspectives: people, place and promise.

People

We want to recruit, retain and develop world-leading staff and students, diversify our community and grow
audiences, partnerships and alumni relationships.

Place

We want to increase our impact in Glasgow, Scotland and the world. This means new building project(s) aligned
to curriculum development and partnerships, renewed civic presence, access to our work across Scotland, and
global reach online.

Promise

We want to build opportunities for students, staff, graduates and partnerships by developing a strong culture of
philanthropic giving, generating income through commercial short courses and project work and supporting both
financial and environmentally sustainable practices.

The updated objectives and progress made during the year are as follows:

* To reassert the distinctiveness of RCS’ pioneering research-led, multi-arts education in an evolving
international performing arts training sector, producing the highest quality graduates who both
specialise and collaborate successfully

To deliver this we will:

e learn from and build on our previous innovative curriculum reforms to refine existing programmes and
introduce new programmes which will reflect and respond to the changing landscape of performing arts
education and industry skills needs; and

e invest in staff development, widen the range of research activity and create more space for colleagues to
bring their research into teaching content and practice.

Work continues to review the undergraduate curriculum which will come into effect from 2023-24. The key aims
are to be bold, collaborative, more efficient and to provide agency for our students and graduates to create,
develop and produce a more personal artistic vision, and ensure greater employability upon graduation and to
foster cross-disciplinary dialogue and more personal and career management techniques. A new academic
lrarmework and set of curriculum principles have been agreed.

Preparations are underway for the new Quality Enhancement Standards Review process. Phase One, which
reviews the RCS response to the Enhancement-Led Institutional Review (ELIR) 4, will take place towards the
end of 2022.

The annual National Student Survey scores were disappointing this year, and the schools are analysing the
results and feedback to separate out Covid disruption from issues which need to be addressed to improve the
student experience.

RCS was again ranked highly in the QS World Rankings at No 5.
The post-doctoral research cohort continues to grow with a record number of PhD graduations in 2022.

The Research Excellence Framework outcome was positive, and RCS led the arts sector in Scotland in terms
of the Impact Rating. The increased size of our submission demonstrated our capacity to develop researchers
and the task now is to follow up with ambition for competitive grant sourcing, research centres, the Innovation
Hub and build up world-leading/international quality outputs across our disciplines.

A two-year pilot Innovation Studio was launched and includes the appointment of two Innovators in Residence.
Through a series of workshops, panels, on-line discussions and interdisciplinary collaborations and seed funds,
Innovation Studio will support creative experimentation, skills development and collaboration and feed into
future curricular development.
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* Play a prominent role in Glasgow civic life and revived city centre, national cultural leadership and
enhance global significance

To deliver this we will:

e continue to be strong advocates for the importance of high-quality arts education and to re-build our
audiences post-pandemic both in person and to widen that audience base through the production and
promotion of selected digital content;

e engage more consciously with diverse local communities in terms of both educational outreach and
performance activity to strengthen those links and to widen the recruitment pipeline;

e continue to play a lead role in the work of Music for Scotland to ensure that momentum is maintained in
the provision of sustained access to music education; and

e engage with Glasgow City Council and other partners to explore future estate development options which
can contribute to the re-generation of the city centre.

The junior conservatoire and short course programmes play an important part in RCS’ role within the life of the
city of Glasgow and beyond; more so as provision expands. The junior conservatoire of music has a national
reach with young people from 29 of 32 local authorities. The phased return over the year to in person learning
was welcome and a range of initiatives have been introduced to enhance the offering to young learners to
attract them back and progress their learning. A Primary Instrumental Programme was launched in September
2021 which is designed as an organic natural progression from Early Years Musicianship classes and designed
to enable children to access instrumental learning in a structured and supportive specialist environment. This
started with piano and strings with plans to expand to other instruments. The Fair Access department launched
a Get Ready Initiative of weekly skill-set and collaboration classes to boost being prepared to audition for BA
Musical Theatre. Bridging programmes are now offered in set construction and scenic art and workshops were
held in schools and colleges to promote the technical programmes. Weekly programmes in contemporary dance
have been introduced for professional dancers to enhance links with the dance community.

The expansion of the short courses includes a range of on-line/blended programmes many of which were
developed and piloted successfully during the past two years when access to RCS was restricted. This is an
effective way to extend reach into wider and new communities of learners.

RCS has engaged fully with the Scottish Government's Ukrainian refugee student scheme to offer auditions,
pastoral and practical support with the application process to commence study at RCS from 2022-23.

2022 is the RCS’ 175 Anniversary and a range of events have happened or are planned to use the opportunity
to raise the institutional profile, including an exhibition from the archives in RCS entitled All to Play For and the
publication of a limited-edition book charting the history, Raising The Curtain. There will also be a reception
at Holyrood and a series of events in December to mark the occasion.

As RCS looks at options for possible future estate expansion in the city there has been increased and
constructive engagement with Glasgow City Council to explore where and how RCS can play a part in the
regeneration of the city centre.

RCS has successfully applied to be part of the new Turing Scheme for student mobility which will see students
spend study periods abroad as far afield as the USA and Australia.

e Create a compelling case for, and deliver, enhanced philanthropic and business development
investment in RCS success to supplement core funding

To deliver this we will:

» seek to generate a growing return on our investment in the development and fundraising function through
cultivation of supporters and growing the donor pool, further development of links in North America and
deepening engagement with the influential alumni community;

e identify growth areas in short course development including the expansion of the micro-credentials
portfolio, on-line and blended programmes; and

e seek partners with which to develop new programmes with components of arts-based content to widen
the scope of our market potential.

Foliowing an external review, RCS is moving forward with a fundraising and development strategy and has built
capacity through the appointment of a Strategic Director of Principal Gift and an Alumni Relations Manager.
The department achieved its overall fundraising target for the year and, in the process, has been successful in
cultivating new donors and in securing endowment support across a range of activities. An Alumni Ambassador
strategy has been developed which aims to enhance the reputation of RCS across the world, build connections
and develop a stronger student and alumni community which will support student recruitment and increase
revenue through promoting a culture of giving.
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In terms of core funding, RCS is engaging with SFC as it reviews its funding model to explore options which
might achieve a more sustainable platform. Once the work on optimal size and scope has concluded, and if
appropriate, this may include a review of overall funded places in the context of the ambition to grow in
certain discipline areas.

e RCS as partner-of-choice for prestigious forward-looking organisations, artistic leaders and
entrepreneurs

To deliver this we will:

e continue to cultivate our relationships with organisations at all levels from national institutions such as the
BBC and Screen Scotland and the national performing arts companies through to emerging artists and
companies via our innovation studio and entrepreneurs in residence to enhance the learning, networking
and future employment opportunities for our students.

During the year the Quality and Standards Committee approved new Memoranda of Understanding with:
Korea National University of the Arts, and
College of Music Mahidol University (Thailand)

Discussions are also underway with the University of St Andrews to deepen the relationship by exploring the
possibility of developing joint Masters programmes.

The Memorandum of Understanding with the BBC is of strategic importance as RCS scopes the future of film
and television arts provision within the curriculum.

RCS has utilised SFC micro-credentials grant funding to develop upskilling, credit-rated short courses primarily
aimed at the professional development market which over time will grow the network of, and association with,
artistic leaders.

As the innovation studio become established it is anticipated that the Innovators in Residence programme will
enhance RCS’ ability to engage more effectively with arts entrepreneurs.

* To be at the forefront of sustainable, ethical and inclusive performance, production and curriculum
initiatives

To deliver this we will:

o reflect changing industry practices in terms of production methods, materials and in relation to rehearsal
and onstage delivery and behaviours. This will address issues such as environmental sustainability and
embrace developments in digital production.

e diversify genres and repertoires to create more inclusive curricular content and production output, review
and select organisations and individuals we will work with to enhance and promote this agenda further.

Developing social responsibility and sustainability is an important thread running through the curriculum review
and artistic practice. During the year a Creative Response Project was undertaken by Masters CCT students
and a key action is to add this to the curriculum and create a performed response to classical, canonical texts
through various contemporary lenses including anti-racism, anti-colonialism, and inclusion. The anti-racism
action plan is in its second year, and it continues to be updated with progress communicated online to the
community.

RCS was successful in securing support from the Cowrie Foundation for several years ahead which will provide
scholarships for Black British undergraduate students from socio-economically disadvantaged backgrounds.

The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Team has worked on further enhancing training provision for staff
and students on a range of areas, including Embedding Anti-Racist Practice in an Arts Education and ED/
Essentials for Audition Panel members. The Team also undertook a British Sign Language survey of staff and
students. As a result, the first of several scheduled Introduction to Deaf Awareness and BSL workshops was
held and BSL Level 1 training is being scoped to provide to appropriate staff.

Ongoing work is taking place within the EDI Team in support of RCS Equality Outcome: To develop knowledge
and good practice to fully support neurodivergent students and staff within the creative arts.

Support continued for bids from students and staff to promote, celebrate or explore any aspect of equality,
diversity and inclusion. Due to the pandemic, all bids to the EDI Creative Fund were required to be of a digital
nature. Successful bids included the development of a short film showcasing the wide range of languages
spoken by students on the BA Acting programme, where all languages were valued equally and an exploration
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of trans-masculinity through both an in-person exhibition and a subsequent online platform, which provided an
ongoing supportive environment and source of meaningful representation.

The Sustainability Committee has been re-constituted and acts as a catalyst for the introduction of sustainability
initiatives across the whole RCS operation. An annual sustainability prize was introduced for students’ work
that highlights sustainability issues through their art or showcases an innovative approach to sustainable
performance. RCS is also committed to applying the good practices recommended in the Theatre Green Book
wherever practicable.

o Identify, scope and deliver the most industry-relevant curriculum portfolio, production activity and
cohort capacities to drive competitive student recruitment and satisfaction, estate strategy and
staff development, and to secure institutional sustainability

To deliver this we will:

¢ streamline activities to create more space for reflection and development of craft.

e review the overall size and scope of our portfolio and the balance between undergraduate, postgraduate
and other programmes through the lenses of industry relevance, student demand trends, financial
sustainability and estate provision which will ensure that we continue to attract an appropriate number of
high-quality students from across the world.

Work continues to define the size and scope of RCS through the next planning period. This is complex and is
critical to inform the key supporting strategies and action plans. Areas under consideration are:

Programme portfolio;

Inter-relationship between programmes and synergies in curriculum delivery;

Balance between music and drama, dance, production and film;

Distribution and number of Scottish/RUK and international students and an optimal overall number; and
Balance between undergraduate and postgraduate.

The undergraduate curriculum review of existing programmes currently underway is seeking to identify ways to
streamline delivery and identify opportunities for overlapping delivery where possible. This includes a review of
the production programmes and the central production unit where it is recognised that production throughput is
unsustainable in its current form both financially and in terms of the impact on student experience.

It is evident that RCS should play a more prominent role in all aspects of training for the film and television
industries and expand the discipline offerings in this area. Meetings have been held with industry professionals
including Screen Scotland, to explore what might be the most appropriate areas to develop at undergraduate
and postgraduate level.

Over the course of the pandemic there had been a noticeable increase in the volume and complexity of student
complaints and mental health issues. Training staff is a priority as well as gaining the confidence and
appropriate advice to review and enhance our practices across a range of areas including repertoire choice.

The Building Committee is undertaking some preliminary scoping of potential buildings and space within the
city centre which will develop into feasibility studies when space needs are better defined.

Challenges presented by Covid and Brexit and mitigating actions
Covid

RCS continued to plan and manage the operational environment throughout the year in response to the evolving
situation and guidance from Scottish Government through the previously established Academic Continuity Group
(ACG) which met regularly and consists of managers from across the institution and with student representation.
The work of ACG has been scaled back but will be increased if circumstances change in the coming year. Estates
alterations to facilitate working under covid guidelines have been mostly removed as performance activities with
live audiences were gradually re-introduced over the course of the year although there were still several
performances and showcases, which were filmed, edited, and streamed. In person learning also increased with
larger lectures kept on-line and the Academic Board maintained elements of the ‘no disadvantage’ approach to
student outcomes during the pandemic. A hybrid-working policy was developed in consultation with staff and
implemented on a trial basis. The Welcome Home Team was retained to support both new arrivals and provide on-
going support in the event of covid-related disruption.

Brexit

The downward trend in the volume of applications from the EU continued with applications for commencement in
2022-23 at 205 compared with 425 in the previous year, a fall of over 50%.
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The loss of EU formerly funded undergraduate places occurred at the same time as additional funded places were
provided by the Scottish Funding Council. It was not possible for RCS to absorb sufficient additional Scots of
appropriate quality in 2021-22, which resulted in a shortfall against target numbers and provision has been made
for claw back of grant. The situation was exacerbated by the disruption to pre-HE performing arts opportunities due
to the pandemic which affected the readiness of the applicant pool.

The numbers challenge remains going into 2022-23 as another EU cohort is replaced with Scots although the
situation has been alleviated to an extent by the RCS recruiting a number of students under the Scottish
Government's Ukrainian Refugee Scheme.

A number of initiatives are on-going across both Schools to raise awareness of career opportunities post-study at
RCS and to provide additional support and bridging programmes to young Scots to build skills and encourage them
into undergraduate study.

RCS continues to lobby for the cultural importance of having EU students in RCS, and to advocate for a greater

targeted bursary support package from the Scottish government while also widening the international reach of
recruitment efforts.

Environmental Sustainability

RCS reports annually under the Climate Change Scotland Act 2009 and has shown a reduction in carbon
consumption year on year since reporting was introduced until the pandemic. We have continued to become more
efficient since then so that, despite a significant increase in annual activity, carbon emissions have increased only

modestly. On-going initiatives include:

e Embedding the Sustainability Committee within the main committee structure reporting to the Academic
Board;

e Commitment of zero waste to landfill;

¢ The creation of the RCS Green Room microsite as a gathering place for all our creative and operational
activity in the spaces of sustainability and climate emergency;

e A project to invest in solar energy has been approved and further introduction of air source heat pump
technology is being scoped;

e On-going LED lighting replacement programme;

e Phased upgrade to building energy management system,;

e PIR and water saving devices;

e Centralised print hubs;

» Disinvestment from fossil fuels and mining stock is complete with re-investment in renewable stocks now
included in the investment manager's mandate;

* Embedding consideration of sustainability issues in curriculum reviews;

e Achievement of Cycle Friendly Campus Award; and

‘Green Recovery Challenge’ as the focus of the first bids for project funding within the Innovation Studio
pilot programme.

RCS is currently working on its plan for Carbon Net Zero and as part of that is gathering baseline data for Scope
3 emissions in terms of business travel to quantify carbon consumption in this area to inform future policy to
reduce it and provide an indication of the level of potential offset costs.

COP 26

RCS was heavily involved in the COP 26 programme with a series of events which both raised the institutional
profile on a global stage and showcased RCS’ engagement with the sustainability agenda. Events included:

e  Vital Signs of the Planet concert in the Glasgow Royal Concert Hall with our 100-strong symphony
orchestra (including junior students) along with internationally recognised conductor Emil de Cou;

¢ RCS Brass performed a new fanfare by former Principal John Wallace at Glasgow Cathedral;

e A group of guitar students performed for world leaders at COP26 at St Giles Cathedral in Edinburgh and
also performed an environmentally themed concert in the Green Zone;

¢ Hope Springs Eternal: a series of original digital music, drama and dance performances which focused
on the themes of climate, nature and resilience;

¢ Climate Portal Project — A converted shipping container, located on the RCS campus from August to
November 2021, used immersive audio-visual technology to bring together people in the UK with
communities and portals around the world. RCS also ran a Climate café during COP 26 with a series of
events;

* A COP Legacy digital publication launched to tie in with Innovation Studio launch.

10
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 requires all non-quoted large
companies to report the greenhouse gas emissions for which they are responsible and on any environmental
matters which are material to the company’s operations. This disclosure complies with the requirements of

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR).

Greenhouse gas emissions by year (tonnes CO2e):

Emissions source (tCOz¢) 2021/22 ;A(’) o | 202021 ;‘; ;fl
Fuel combustion: Natural gas 481 57.9% 505 63.0%
Purchased electricity 349 42.1% 296 37.0%
Total emissions (tCOze) 830 100.0% 801 100.0%
Intensity: (tCOze per square metre) 0.0368 0.0355
Energy consumption by year (kWh):

% of % of
Energy consumption by year (kWh) 2021122 Total 2020/21 Total
Natural Gas 2,624,438 61.4% | 2,761,918 66.4%
Purchased Electricity 1,646,328 38.6% 1,397,589 33.6%
Total 4,270,766 100.0% | 4,159,507 100.0%

We are unable to provide figures for the consumption of fuel for the purposes of transport due to system limitations.
We do not have responsibility for any emission sources that are not included in our Financial Statements.

Our greenhouse gas emissions have been calculated using HH (half-hourly) data and utility bills in line with the
methodology set out in the UK Government’'s Environmental Reporting Guidelines 2019.

Estates and Infrastructure Developments

With campus activity beginning to return to normal, focus has moved back to a refreshed estates strategy to support
the delivery of the new strategic plan. This includes the development of a business case for expansion of estate
and feasibility study/appraisal of various options for expansion and improvement of facilities. There has been
positive engagement with Glasgow City Council both about the removal of the Savoy Bridge at the front of Renfrew
St and more strategically about potential development sites in the city centre.

With student accommodation at a premium in Glasgow, RCS has decided to extend the lease capacity at BASE for
academic year 2023-24.

Qutcome Agreement

The 2021/22 Outcome Agreement focused on outlining the Conservatoire’s return to increased on-site teaching
following the easing of Covid pandemic restrictions and a recommencement of targeted outreach activities which

had been stalled or limited during this period.

The Conservatoire set, and met, ambitious targets related to widening access and Transitions and an increase to
targeted Transitions outreach activities helped to extend our scope to build routes to further study for individuals in

areas of deprivation.

A key aspect outlined in the Outcome Agreement was the Conservatoire’s application of learning that had been
gained through the Covid pandemic response in relation to the use of digital technologies to reach a wide, and

inclusive, global audience.

The use of blended learning methodologies enabled us to expose our students to a wide range of outstanding
international and national performers, experts and organisations to inform their learning and to widen their

awareness and experience.

11
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The continued progress that is being made in relation to the Conservatoire's Anti-Racism Action Plan, at both an
institutional and individual departmental level, and to the increased diversification of our staff and Board members
was an important factor outlined in the Outcome Agreement.

Work was also being progressed in further areas related to inclusivity, including developments to support
neurodiverse staff, students and visitors to access and participate in the Conservatoire's work.

The opportunities afforded through the upcoming Undergraduate Curriculum Review process in terms of curriculum
development, for example the aim to embed sustainability goals, methods and awareness into the curriculum, were
highlighted in the Outcome Agreement.

Outlined activities planned by the Conservatoire in terms of supporting pandemic recovery included the launch of
the RCS Innovation Studio which would have a key role in facilitating new knowledge exchange opportunities, new
modes of working and new collaborations to support skills development and co-creation as a vital route to social
innovation, recovery and resilience.

The Board of Governors approves both the Outcome Agreement and the associated annual self-evaluation report
prior to submission to SFC. RCS’s 2021-22 Outcome Agreement and self-evaluation report can be found at:

Annual Accounts & Qutcome Agreement - Royal Conservatoire of Scotland (rcs.ac.uk)

Future prospects

RCS has made a deficit of £2.1M in 2021-22. Discounting non-cash pension costs, restricted fund donations and
losses on investments, the underlying operating position is a surplus of £146K. This is better than the original
budget and has resulted in a positive movement in overall cash of £160K.

The revised forecast pension service charge for the year ahead under FRS102 has reduced significantly since the
budget was set which helps to reduce the overall budget deficit. However, the underlying operating deficit is
budgeted to worsen because of the level of grant settlement and forecast under-recruitment of Scots undergraduate
students, set against a rising cost base notably for pay, utilities, software systems upgrades and leasing charges.
This scale of deficit begins to erode cash levels and so is not sustainable in the medium term. RCS is looking at a
range of options to make savings and to generate additional net income to reverse the decline and aims to re-
establish a position where cash is generated from operations on a year-to-year basis.

The environment in which to achieve these goals has become significantly more challenging over the past year.
Inflation has increased sharply, with the latest pay settlements now lagging other sectors and projected energy
costs. This is compounded by the emergence of a severe shortage of student accommodation in and around
Glasgow which has led to offer holders being unable to take up their place and a resulting loss of revenue when
hitting recruitment targets is more critical than ever. Operationally, it is anticipated that the coming year will return
to a nearer pre-pandemic normal which is welcome to the RCS community. As it works to finalise its strategic plan
through to 2030, RCS will address the challenges of achieving longer term financial sustainability while also
protecting its high reputation nationally and internationally through a balance of cost efficiencies and new income
generation.

Academic developments

The BA Performance in BSL/English programme was re-approved following review in August 2022, with students
commencing studies from September 2022 following a year of paused recruitment to the programme to support an
increase in student numbers.

The first students will commence the MA Psychology in the Arts programme in session 2022-23 which had been
validated in May 2021.

A Professional Graduate Diploma in Ballet programme was validated in September 2021 and ran during the year.

Intake to the BA Contemporary Performance Practice programme has been suspended for one year to allow it to
be re-assessed as part of the curriculum review.

The Masters in Fine Arts ran for the first time during the session with the cohort graduating in January 2022,

A raft of credit-rated short courses and micro-credential modules were approved during the year including The Arts
in Prison, Creative Filmmaking and Intimacy Coordination.

Access and employment of disabled persons
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RCS's building and facilities are predominantly accessible in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act
2010 and each refurbishment or new development continues to enhance the overall level of accessibility. There is
an Access Policy in place for members of the public with disabilities who attend events at RCS.

Applications from disabled persons for employment are always fully considered, and if a disabled candidate meets
the minimum essential criteria for a post they are always invited to attend an interview. Ultimately, however, the
most suitable applicant for a post is selected, whether or not that person is disabled. It is the policy of RCS that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, provide equality of
opportunity to that available to other employees. In the event of existing employees becoming disabled, every effort
is made to ensure that their employment within RCS continues and appropriate adjustments to the workplace and/or
work patterns are made, along with the provision of relevant training to undertake suitable alternative employment.

Promotion of Equality of Service under the Equality Act 2010

The RCS Mainstreaming Equality Report 2021 provides information on key ways in which we promote equality of
delivery of service to different groups and have due regard to the public sector equality duties under the Equality
Act 2010. The current Equality Outcomes 2021-2025, which focus on our priority areas for action, also provide
information on success measures, strategic links, and how the Equality Outcomes link to the general equality duty
of the Equality Act 2010.

These documents are underpinned by a wide range of work and initiatives that include:

e Anincrease in EDI Team resource;

e Focused and challenging training for staff and students;
Involvement in sector wide developments in EDI issues (i.e. equality impact assessment processes;
Race Equality Charter for small specialist institutions);

e  Working with departments and programmes to facilitate increased learning around race and diversity;
and

» Development of in-house networks for staff and students that will feed back into policy development.

Fair Work Practices

In line with the Fair Work Framework, RCS has committed to alignment with the Living Wage Foundation rates of
pay and is working towards Living Wage Employer recognition. RCS has held Healthy Working Lives Bronze award
for several years and was close to achieving the Silver award when the Scheme was paused and then ceased.
However, wellbeing practices continue to be based around its founding principles and activities. RCS is in the
process of developing an institutional Learning and Development Strategy, which will enable progress towards
Investors in People recognition. There is an established Staff Consultative Forum with representatives from across
the institution, which provides a platform for consultation and employee voice and works to improve the
effectiveness of the institution. This Forum has a dual role of Staff Consultation and Wellbeing.

Health, Safety, Well-being and Child Protection

RCS continued to deal with the impact of the removal of covid-related restrictions throughout the first half of the
year, with the HSW team continuing to provide support, guidance, and assistance to our community to plan for and
deliver increased on-site activity. The team have also worked to ensure that appropriate equipment and support is
available for those who continue to work from home or, increasingly, on a hybrid basis. The HSW team has been
developing resources and identifying appropriate training opportunities for staff relating to positive mental health
and wellbeing, with a particular focus on managing their wellbeing whilst supporting students who are experiencing
poor mental health.

RCS continues to develop and expand its policies and procedures for challenging and eliminating inappropriate
behaviour within the performing arts sector. RCS has developed guidelines for staff regarding the use of pronouns
for both our junior and UG / PG provision, and now offer trans- and gender diversity awareness training and Active
Bystander training for staff and students. Anti-racism training and support for staff and students remains a focus.
Refresher training for Designated Child Protection Contacts is being scheduled with the NSPCC.
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Financial Results

Financial Summary

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Income 26,248 25,431
Expenditure 27,933 25,192
(Deficit)/surplus before other gains and losses (1,685) 239
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (6) (4)
Realised gain on investments 50 109
(Deficit)/surplus before unrealised gains and losses (1,641) 344
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investments (443) 562
(Deficit)/surplus for the year (2,084) 906
Operating (Deficit)/surplus (excluding gains and losses, endowment
and restricted income) (2,621) 254
Capital expenditure 473 165
Cash and cash equivalents 6,928 6,767
Net current assets 5,272 5,332
Pension Asset/(liability) - (7,748)

The deficit for the year before gains and losses is £1,641,000 (2021: a surplus of £344,000). This includes non-
cash FRS102 service charge and net interest cost of £2,327,000 (2021: £1,699,000). In addition to the increase in
pension charges, the deterioration in the operating result is due to a provision for claw back of recurrent grant in
the year for under enrolment of domestic undergraduate students and additional operating costs arising from a
return to more normal in-person on campus provision. This was mitigated by the contribution achieved from the
resumption of short courses and box office activity and the receipt of an insurance claim. The prior year also
benefited from an additional Covid emergency grant provided by the Scottish Funding Council.

The statement of financial position remains in good health with unrestricted general reserves before pension asset
and capital asset donations of £12,558,000 (2021: £11,935,000).

The position relating to RCS's involvement in Strathclyde Pension Fund has improved due to the significant
increase in the net discount rate (discount rate net of inflation) coupled with the slight decrease in the CPI
assumption compared to the previous year. This creates a gain on the balance sheet resulting in a net pension
asset at 31 July 2022 of £nil (2021: a net liability of £7,748,000). It should be noted that the pension asset has not
been recognised in full and details are set out in accounting policy note 1h and note 23 to the financial statements.

Cash on hand including short term investments at 31 July 2022 was £6,928,000 (2021: £6,767,000).

Summary of Investment Performance

RCS’s investments are managed on a discretionary basis by a professional fund manager on behalf of the Board
of Governors and monitored by the Finance and General Purposes Committee. The total return across the
managed portfolios for the year was as follows:

Over/Under
Benchmark Total Return Performance
% % %
-1.9 -1.6 +0.3

There are three portfolios which are identical in terms of asset allocation, stock selection and the weightings in
individual holdings. The General Fund provides income for unrestricted use within RCS; the Prize Fund provides
income to fund annual prizes and the Piano Fund provides income in support of instrument leasing charges.

The performance of the General Fund has varied slightly as there has been a regular addition of funds for investment
over the course of the year.

The investments have returned -1.6% for the year to 31 July 2022, compared to the benchmark which returned
-1.9%. The investments produce an estimated annual gross yield of 3.6% which is an important part of the total
return. The investments are well diversified and positioned against a fluid economic and political backdrop. RCS
has divested from direct investment holdings in oil, gas and mining stocks and has invested a proportion of the
porifolios in renewables which needs to be taken into account when considering performance against the
benchmark. This is illustrative of RCS’s wider engagement with, and commitment to, the sustainability and carbon
reduction agenda.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Strategic Risks

The Board of Governors has adopted a Risk Appetite Statement which defines risks that RCS is willing and prepared
to take, risks that RCS needs to reduce and risks that RCS is not willing to accept. In addition the Risk Appetite
Statement:

1. Provides guidance on the categorisation of risks inherent in existing and new activities;

2. Identifies the risk boundaries, where, if the risk were to crystallise, the impact is adverse and not acceptable;

3. Supports a comprehensive analysis of the risk across RCS, promoting awareness and understanding of how the
risks inter-relate; and

4. Provides a consistent methodology for examining risks and identifying risks that have to be taken to achieve the
strategic objectives.

RCS has identified key risks associated with the achievement of the strategic plan and determined the institutional
risk appetite within a number of categories as follows:

Category Risk Appetite
Compliance and adherence to statute, regulations and professional standards Zero
Development of learning and teaching and research (incorporating digital innovation

in academic and support functions) High
International development and growth Medium
Student experience and reputation Low
Financial stability and flexibility Low
People and culture Medium
Major projects Medium#
Physical environment Medium
Virtual environment — cyber resilience and security Low

# Risk appetite depends on the nature of the project.

The Board of Governors manages these risks through the senior management team which, together with lay Governor
participation, forms the Risk Management Group. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit and Risk
Committee on the controls and mitigating actions that are in place and planned.

COVID and Brexit continue to affect many elements of the corporate risk register to which has been added the far-
reaching socio-economic consequences of the war in Ukraine. The higher strategic risk areas within the corporate
risk register are regarded as being:

Failure to manage the academic standards and ensure the quality of the student experience

The increased volume and complexity of student complaints has created a challenge for the institution in terms
of reputation and trust and the involvement of senior staff reduces capacity to engage in strategic and operational
planning. RCS mitigates this risk through:

» Agreed action plans continue to be implemented and further developed in both Schools to address issues raised
in student feedback from surveys (particularly NSS at UG level);

¢ The Complaints Handling Process has been revised and further staff training on complaints handing is being
given. Utilisation of a professional third party service in complex cases is also under consideration.

Failure to recruit a sustainable student population in terms of quality and diversity

The diminishing opportunities for young Scots to secure sustained access to high quality performing arts education,
further disrupted by COVID, is of concern to RCS for future home recruitment prospects when it is expected to
increase intake of Scots undergraduates post-Brexit. RCS mitigates this risk through:

¢ In the relatively short term by engaging in the SG Ukrainian student refugee scheme;
Junior Conservatoire initiatives such as bespoke support packages for near misses;
The Transitions/Widening Access to the Creative industries Initiatives; and other more targeted ‘taster’ work with
students related to specific undergraduate programmes;

e Short Courses and Summer Schools to attract applicants;

¢ Developing appropriate marketing materials, according to discipline funding category and priority group, as per
our Contextualised Admissions Policy (e.g. SIMD 20/40 and minority ethnic groups);

e Forward planning of student recruitment targets by programme by category to flex particularly in terms of Scots
recruitment;

e Through curriculum review identify opportunities in programme development that are attractive to Scots;
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e Engaging with all aspects of the implementation of the Scottish Government manifesto commitment to provide
free music tuition to school age children;

¢ Lobbying for a larger share of the Scottish Government international scholarship fund which appropriately
recognises the importance of EU students to the RCS ecosystem;

¢ Developing bilateral arrangements with European institutions to continue to provide exchange opportunities which
could lead to future recruitment and engaging with the new Turing Scheme to build relationships with a broader
range of international institutions;

¢ Extending our international reach for high quality students; and

e Widening the appeal of the curriculum through the implementation of the anti-racism action plan.

Failure to maintain financial viability in the short to medium term

Major uncertainties remain in the short term about student matriculation numbers and about the speed and extent of
the recovery of other income streams. Inflationary pressures are increasing costs while income levels are largely
already set. RCS will be also be impacted by the change in holiday pay entitlement for zero hours contracts which
will result in increased costs. The student accommodation shortage in Glasgow is a cause for concern for 2022-23
with a large number of both incoming and continuing students finding it difficult to secure accommodation. RCS
mitigates these risks through:

e Lobbying Scottish Government/SFC to address funding differential with our main competitors in England and
sector level push for sustainable future funding;

e Engagement with SFC to make the case that claw back of grant should be mitigated in recognition of the particular

challenges RCS faces due to Brexit and the pandemic;

Recruitment of Ukrainian students;

Working to support students identify accommodation and provision of a travel bursary;

Real terms increase applied to controllable tuition fees;

Increased focus on generating a financial contribution from pre-HE and other short course activities;

Close monitoring of cash balances and cash flow projections (majority of forecast operating deficit consists of

FRS102 pension service change which is a non cash cost);

General investment portfolio which could provide a cash buffer if required:;

Cost saving measures being identified;

Forward contracts for utility costs have delayed the impact of increases;

investment in development and fundraising operation to boost philanthropic giving;

Securing support for scholarships from RCS Endowment Trust to mitigate loss of other donations for scholarships;

Negotiation of expansion of student accommodation lease; and

Review of employment contracts of variable hours staff.

e @ o e 6 o &

Failure to adapt to maintain longer term financial sustainability including the management of pension costs

The challenge of longer term financial sustainability cannot be separated entirely from the issues which face RCS
over the short/medium term and many of the mitigants overlap and support both risk areas. Other mitigations include:

¢ Institution-specific lobbying as the nation’s only conservatoire;

» Continue to market RCS positively internationally with emphasis that programmes represent good value for money
in the conservatoire sector while also looking at tuition fee setting strategy;

Developing portfolio of on-line programmes that are scalable to improve financial contribution;

Diversity of provision offers flexibility of recruitment in a rapidly changing environment;

Planning for a range of scenarios in response to possible financial landscapes; and

Annual pension scheme actuarial assumptions are pro-actively managed to more accurately reflect the
Conservatoire's particular membership profile and an options exercise is being undertaken to explore possible
alternative pension provision.

Monitoring of Performance
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The Board of Governors has agreed a comprehensive suite of performance indicators to assist it to monitor
performance across the range of RCS’s activities.

2021-22 2020-21
Income growth and diversity
(Deficit)/surplus before other unrealised gains and losses £(1,641)K £344K
Operating (deficit)/surplus (excludes gains and losses, endowment and restricted £(2,621)K £254K
income)
Percentage of funding
SFC 48% 54%
Undergraduate and postgraduate tuition fees 32% 34%
Junior Conservatoire and short course tuition fees 9% 7%
Box office and letting 0% 0%
Donations and other income 11% 5%
Infrastructure
Capital Investment as % of insurance value 0% 0%
Building condition
Category A — as new 64% 64%
Category B — completely fit for purpose 30% 30%
Category C —in need of improvement 6% 6%
UG and PG Applicant demand. student achievement and satisfaction
Applicants:*
Scottish 1,230 1,165
EU 425 780
RUK 2,110 1,685
International 1,025 935
Total 4,790 4,565
Students: 4 No % No %
Scottish 670 51 650 48
EU 145 11 185 14
RUK 245 19 235 17
International 250 19 275 21
Total 1310 100 1,345 100
Applications: offers : acceptances* 10.1:2.1: 1 9.7.2.0: 1
Percentage of applicants with a declared disability 18% 16%
Percentage of undergraduate and postgraduate students with a declared disability 26% 27%
Scots undergraduate applicants from SIMD 20/40 as percentage of total Scots
applicants 22% 21%
Scots undergraduate entrants from SIMD 20/40 as percentage of total Scots
entrants 19% 21%
Scots undergraduates from SIMD 20/40 as percentage of total Scots
undergraduates 29% 30%
Student Achievement Rate’ 88% 89%
Course Completion Rate + 2years ? 84% 84%
External engagement
National Student Survey overall satisfaction rating 63% 79%
HESA Graduate Outcomes percentage in work or further study 91%* 90%*
Number of internally generated student performances® 240 4
Audience number® 17,472 132
Number of online streamed performances 71 165
Number of tickets sold for online performances 2,924 8,609
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* From the HESA Graduate Outcomes 18/19 return (most recent available) published in July 2021,

The student achievement rate is a measure (expressed as a %) of those students who commence the year and become either
eligible to progress or graduate on completion of the year of study.

2The course completion rate + 2 years is a measure (expressed as a %) of students who commence a programme and complete
that programme within 2 years of the standard course duration.

3As a result of the pandemic the only public performances with audiences during 2020-21 were ballet showcases.

4 Prior year statistics have been rebased in fine with current year methodology.

18



Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

To ensure that RCS’s constitution is followed at all times and that its business is conducted in accordance with its
various statutory obligations and that appropriate advice is available to enable this to happen.

To constructively challenge and support the management of RCS.
Reserved Powers

+ The dismissal of the Chair of the Board of Governors;
« The appointment and dismissal of the Principal;
« The appointment and dismissal of all Lay Governors and the dismissal of elected Governors;
« The appointment and dismissal of the Secretary;
« The approval of changes to RCS's Articles of Association and related Statutory Instrument;
+ The approval of the committee structure of the Board of Governors;
« The approval of capital projects with a value greater than £500,000;
+ The approval of RCS'’s policies in respect of:
« Health and safety
» Equality of opportunity
e Human resources
« Dignity at Work
« Treasury Management
« Investment Management
« Business Continuity
+ Reserves;
« The identification and mitigation of risk;
« The approval of the constitution of the Students’ Union;
« Any matters which might have a significant bearing on the reputation of RCS; and
« Any other matters which may be identified by the Scottish Funding Council as requiring the approval of the full
Board.

Payment of creditors

It is RCS's policy to obtain the best terms for all goods and services. There is thus no single policy as to the terms
used. In agreements negotiated with suppliers, RCS endeavors to include and abide by specific payment terms. The
creditors’ balance at 31 July 2022 represented 9% of total purchases for the year, equivalent to 32 creditor days. No
interest was paid in terms of the Late Payments of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998.

APPROVED BY THE GOVERNORS ON 28 OCTOBER 2022 AND SIGNED ON THEIR BEHALF BY

e i
Nick Kuenssberg rofessor Jeffrey Sharkey

Chair Principal
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THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE ROYAL CONSERVATOIRE OF SCOTLAND

The Board of Governors of RCS is collectively responsible for overseeing RCS's activities, determining its future
direction, and fostering an environment in which RCS's mission is achieved and the potential of all of its students is
achieved. The Board of Governors ensures that RCS complies with the legislative, regulatory and best-practice
framework within which Scottish higher education operates.

Primary Responsibilities

To approve the mission, strategic vision and values of RCS, long-term academic and business plans and key
performance indicators, and to ensure that these meet the interests of stakeholders.

Under the general control and direction of the Board, to delegate authority to the Principal, as Chief Executive, for the
academic, corporate, financial, estate and human resource management of RCS and to establish and keep under
regular review the policies, procedures and limits within such management functions as shall be undertaken by and
under the authority of the Principal.

To retain strategic responsibility for quality and provide public accountability for all aspects of institutional activities,
including quality assurance and enhancement.

To delegate to the Academic Board the function of the Board relating to the overall planning, co-ordination,
development and supervision of the academic work of RCS and such other functions of the Board of Governors as
may be assigned to the Academic Board by the Board of Governors. Under these arrangements, the Board of
Governors must satisfy itself that there are appropriate processes in place with regard to quality assurance and
enhancement of educational provision.

To ensure the establishment and monitoring of systems of control and accountability, including financial and
operational controls and risk assessment, procedures for handling internal grievances, complaints from students/staff
and others (including whistleblowing) and for managing conflicts of interest.

To ensure that processes are in place to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of RCS against the
plans and approved key performance indicators, which should be — where possible and appropriate — benchmarked
against other comparable institutions.

To establish processes to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Board of Governors itself,
its Committees and the Chair of the Board of Governors.

To conduct its business in an open and transparent manner and in accordance with the Scottish Code of Good HE
Governance, bearing in mind the principles of proportionality and relevance to the nature of RCS, and with the
principles of public life drawn up by the Committee on Standards in Public Life.

To establish and oversee processes which secure the election of the Chair of the Board of Governors.

To ensure that RCS meets its commitments to the Scottish Funding Council.

To safeguard the good name and values of RCS.

To appoint the Principal as Chief Executive, and to put in place suitable arrangements for monitoring her/his
performance.

To appoint a Secretary to the Board of Governors and to ensure that, if the person appointed has managerial
responsibilities in the institution, there is an appropriate separation in the lines of accountability.

To be the employing authority for all staff in RCS and to be responsible for establishing a human resources strategy
together with all relevant human resources policies.

To be the principal financial and business authority of RCS, to ensure that proper books of account are kept, to
approve the annual budget and financial statements, and to have overall responsibility for RCS’s assets, property
and estate.

To ensure that public funds are appropriately applied and are properly accounted for and that RCS delivers value for
money.

To be RCS's legal authority and, as such, to ensure that systems are in place for meeting all of its legal obligations,
including those arising from contracts and other legal commitments made in RCS’s name.

To make such provision as it thinks fit for the general welfare of students, in consultation with the Academic Board.

To act as custodian for any legacy, endowment, bequest or gift made directly to RCS.
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Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
RCS has arrangements for directors’ and officers’ liability insurance cover.

Governors’ interests

Susan Lee Kidd 60 ordinary shares of £1
Nick Kuenssberg 60 ordinary shares of £1
Professor Jeffrey Sharkey 120 ordinary shares of £1
John Anthony Craig 60 ordinary shares of £1

Professor Jeffrey Sharkey temporarily holds an additional 60 shares pending the appointment by election of an academic
staff governor.

Governors’ interests are shown as at the date of this report.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association prohibit payment of any dividend on the shares, prohibit any distribution
to the shareholders in the event of a liquidation and require the Chair to vote in accordance with the wishes of the
Governors on certain matters. RCS maintains a register of Governors’ interests and a register of gifts to governors
and staff.

Student and Staff Engagement in Governance and Quality Processes

Students are represented at all levels of RCS’s governance and academic quality assurance and enhancement
processes. The President and one of the two Vice Presidents of the Students’ Union are members of both the Board
of Governors and the Academic Board, the President of the Students’ Union is a member of the Nominations and
Health, Safety & Welfare Committees and students are members of all academic-related committees and processes
that report to the Academic Board, other than Boards of Examiners and progress committees.

Membership of the Board of Governors includes two elected staff Governors (one by academic and the other by
professional services staff) and one staff Governor nominated by the Academic Board, which itself includes two
elected staff (one from each School) and two staff nominated by School Committees. Uniquely in higher education,
both elected staff Governors and the President of the Students’ Union are shareholders in the Company (the Royal
Conservatoire being a Company Limited by Guarantee with a Shareholding). As well as being of significant symbolic
and governance importance, rights of shareholders include the ability to propose resolutions at RCS’s Annual General
Meeting.

Fixed assets

The fixed asset movements for the year are detailed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Auditors

In accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution for the re-appointment of Chiene + Tait LLP
as auditors of RCS is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

APPROVED BY THE GOVERNORS ON 28 OCTOBER 2022 AND SIGNED ON THEIR BEHALF BY

Nick Kuenssberg Professor Jeffrey Sharkey
Chair Principal
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GOVERNORS’ REPORT
Honorary doctorates of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland
The following honorary doctorates were awarded during the academic session 2021-22:

Doctor of Drama
Ncuti Gatwa
Sam Heughan

Doctor of Music
Marin Allsop
Errollyn Wallen CBE

Governors
The Governors set out in the table below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 August 2021 to the
date of this report unless otherwise noted.

Lay Govemnors

Nick Kuenssberg OBE (Chair)

Agnes Robson (Vice Chair and Senior Independent Governor)
Jo Buckley

Andrew Butcher

Morag Campbell

Professor Stuart Cross

David Hare

Professor Donald MacRae OBE (retired 8/12/21)
Carol Main MBE

Sharon Mair

Dorothy Miell (Vice Chair and Chair Designate)
Ed Monaghan

Professor Mark O'Thomas

Professor Nacim Pak-Shiraz

Philip Rodney

Professor Matthew Rooke

Caroline Roxburgh

John Taylor

Govemors ex officiis

The Principal:
Professor Jeffrey Sharkey

The Deputy Principal:
Dr Lois Fitch

The President, Students’ Union:
Ken Fairbrother (from 1/8/22)
John Anthony Craig (up to 31/7/22)

Nominated by Academic Board
Jean Sangster

Student nominated

The Vice President, Students’ Union
Ulysse Tonnele — Music (from 1/8/22) or
Scotty Scott — DDPF (from 1/8/22)

Ken Fairbrother — Music (up to 31/7/22) or
Daniella Damptey — DDPF (up to 31/7/22)
Staff Govemors-elected

Elizabeth Jenkinson (Academic staff) (elected 29/10/21)
Ruth McGowan (Professional staff) (elected 29/10/21; resigned 30/9/22)

Register of Governors' interests can be viewed on the website at hitp://iwww.rcs ac.uk/about us/governors/register/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Board of Governors follows best practice in all aspects of corporate governance
relevant to the higher education sector and with specific reference to the Scottish Code of Good Higher Education
Governance, 2017.

In the opinion of the Board of Governors, RCS complies with all the principles and provisions of the 2017 Scottish Code
of Good Higher Education Governance, 2017. The RCS also complies with the relevant Scottish legislation which
regulates higher education in Scotland (eg Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013 and the Higher Education Governance
(Scotland) Act 2016). These acts make provision for the main statutory bodies in the governance of the RCS — the
Academic Board and the Board of Governors. RCS updated its constitutional documentation in 2020 to enact the
requirements of the Higher Education Governance Act (Scotland) 2016.

All governance matters have followed the annual schedule of business, with normal agendas, and supported by regular
premeeting briefings. During the pandemic period (2020-2022) these meetings have been held largely virtually with
papers being issued electronically. Between formal meetings of the Board of Governors and its sub committees, the
Chair of the Board has kept in regular contact with the Principal and senior officers.

The Board of Governors has adopted a Code of Practice for the Conduct of Public Business which sets out the corporate
and individual responsibilities of Governors; the procedures for their appointment, induction and training; the role of the
Chair, Principal (as Designated Officer) and Secretary; guidelines for conflicts of interest and procedures for matters
related to openness, whistle blowing, and independent review.

Commitment to diversity

The composition of the Board takes into consideration the need for as full a representation of all protected
characteristics within the Board's membership as possible. As such, a review of the composition of the Board of
Governors was undertaken as part of the RCS’ approach to the election of a new Chair. Subsequent to this, the
Nominations Committee will review the equalities composition annually.

Size and Composition of the Board of Governors

As of the date of this report, the Board of Governors comprises 24 Governors — 17 Lay Governors (including the
senior lay governor — the Chair), 3 ex officio, 1 student member and 2 elected/nominated Governors. Board of
Governors membership is given at page 21 of this report. RCS’s Order of Council specifies that the number of Lay
Governors should be not less than 11 and not more than 19.

There are a number of factors that influence the size and composition of the Board of Governors — some of which
are, we believe, unique to RCS. Most obviously, and in common with all other HEIs, the Board of Governors needs
to ensure that the skills and experience profile of its total membership is sufficient to meet the Board of Governors’
commitments in terms of its Statement of Primary Responsibilities and to operate its various Committees. As a
national institution with an international reach, the Board of Governors also seeks to recruit Governors from the length
and breadth of Scotland and, in support of RCS's international profile and ambitions, from out with Scotland. The
Board of Governors also believes that, in the context of RCS’s singular focus on the performing arts, that its
membership should include Governors with either direct experience of performance or with leadership/senior
management experience in the performing arts. In combination, these factors mean that the number of Lay Governor
members of RCS’s Board of Governors has always been closer to the maximum number permissible of 19 rather
than the minimum number of 11.

The Board of Governors consists of:

Lay members with proven experience in the performing arts, industrial, commercial or employment matters or the
practice of any profession;

Governors ex officiis — the Principal, the Deputy Principal and the President of the Students’ Union; and
A Governor appointed by the Academic Board, a Governor elected by academic staff, a Governor elected by
professional services staff and one of the student vice-presidents.

The Board of Governors elects the Vice-Chairs from those in category 1 above.

The business of RCS is overseen by the Board of Governors who may exercise all the powers of the company. The
statement of Governors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial statements is set out on pages 28 and 29.

The Board of Governors may delegate any of its powers to any committee of one or more Governors. The Board of
Governors is responsible for RCS’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve its business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Governors meets five times per year and, additionally, normally holds an annual meeting to consider
strategic planning issues. The Board of Governors has several committees, memberships of which are listed on page
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53. All of these committees are formally constituted with their own terms of reference. Eight of these committees are
particularly important in ensuring that RCS meets its various governance commitments.

The Academic Board is responsible to the Board of Governors for the overall planning, co-ordination, development
and supervision of the academic work and for Quality Assurance and Quality Enhancement within RCS. The
membership comprises the Principal, the Deputy Principal, the Senior Academic Managers, the Head of Information
Services, a member co-opted from another academic institution, three elected student members, five elected
academic staff members and a lay governor in attendance.

The Finance and General Purposes Commiittee inter alia recommends to the Board of Governors RCS’s annual
revenue and capital budgets and monitors performance in relation to these approved budgets.

The Committee examines all matters which have major financial implications for RCS and therefore it is involved in
the examination of all aspects of RCS’s planning and budgetary processes. The scope of the Committee's remit may,
from time to time, include the examination of issues which extend beyond financial, but which are nevertheless of
strategic importance. In carrying out its broad remit, the Committee will:

e scrutinise draft budgets and forward financial forecasts and make recommendations to the Board of

Governors for approval of those draft budgets and forecasts;

scrutinise monthly management accounts;

monitor and examine key performance indicators;

scrutinise draft statutory accounts prior to audit;

monitor treasury management activities and, in particular:

appoint/re-appoint investment managers;

set the parameters of investment policy within which investment managers will operate;

monitor the performance of investment managers;

scrutinise proposals for material alterations to staff contractual arrangements, including pensions provision,

and make recommendations to the Board of Governors accordingly; and

e  prior to its submission to the full Board, receive and comment upon the annual report in respect of progress
in relation to the Strategic Plan and the Outcome Agreement.

The membership comprises the Chair of the Board of Governors, Principal and five Lay Governors. The Convenor
of the Audit and Risk Committee is in attendance. Whilst the Director of Finance and Estates and Deputy Director of
Finance attend meetings of the Finance and General Purposes Committee, they are not members of the Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

e Formulating, advising on and keeping under review RCS'’s policy and procedures for remuneration of senior
staff, for approval by the Board of Governors;

¢ Reviewing and determining the salary and terms and conditions of members of senior management;

e Formulating and advising on RCS’s policy on severance arrangements and approving the terms of any
severance or early retirement arrangement for a senior manager; and

¢ Determining any issue referred to it by the Board of Governors concerning remuneration and terms and
conditions of senior staff; and reporting its decisions to the Board of Governors.

The membership comprises a lay governor appointed by the Board of Governors as Convenor, the Chair of the Board
of Governors, the Convenor of the Finance and General Purposes Committee and an additional lay governor
appointed by the Board of Governors.

The group of senior staff whose remuneration is determined by the Remuneration Committee comprises: the
Principal, Deputy Principal, the Director of Finance and Estates, the Director of External Relations, the Director of
Human Resources, the Director of Fair Access, the Director of Drama, Dance, Production and Film, the Director of
Music, the Director of Business Development, the Director of Research and Knowledge Exchange and Academic
Registrar/Board Secretary.

Policy for setting remuneration of senior staff

The purpose of the policy is to ensure that the pay and reward arrangements for senior staff are fair in relation to
other staff within RCS, whilst at the same time offering a reward that will recruit, retain and motivate key staff.

The performance of the Principal is subject to an annual appraisal by the Chair and takes account of RCS’s plans
and achievements. The Chair takes soundings from Board of Governors members including staff and student
governors to ensure that a rounded view of performance is obtained. The resulting performance evaluation is reported
to and agreed by the Remuneration Committee before it considers the Principal’'s salary.

The Principal will recommend to the Remuneration Committee salary increases for senior staff and in doing so will
demonstrate that consideration has been given to: an assessment of the performance of the individual, data supplied
by the Director of Human Resources on salary benchmarking for the Conservatoire/Public Sector as appropriate and
RCS pay award. The Secretary is in attendance.
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The Nominations Committee receives and considers proposals for Board of Governors and Committee membership
and makes recommendations to the Board of Governors. The Committee monitors Board of Governors membership
in terms of its agreed statement of balance of skills and attributes and equality and diversity and reports annually to
the Board of Governors. The membership consists of the Chair, Vice-Chair, Principal, Student Union President, one
elected staff Governor and up to two Lay Governors appointed by the Board of Governors. The Secretary is in
attendance.

The Audit and Risk Committee was established by the Board of Governors to advise and assist on the assurance
and control environment of RCS in respect of;

proper financial management;

safeguarding RCS’s assets;

the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of RCS'’s activities;
corporate governance and the conduct of RCS's operations;
risk management; and

counter-fraud and whistleblowing.

The duties of the Committee include:

e review and advise on the appointment, fees, scope and effectiveness of internal and external auditors;

e receive their reports and discuss appropriate action with senior management and the Board of Governors in

relation to the effectiveness of RCS’s financial and other internal control systems and for ensuring that value

for money is achieved;

approve the external audit plan;

approve the internal audit plan;

review the audit needs assessment;

ensure that risk management systems are in place;

review reports on risk management arrangements;

consider and recommend annual audited financial statements to the Board of Governors;

review reports from relevant bodies including the Scottish Funding Council, Audit Scotland and the National

Audit Office; and

e producing an annual report for the governing body, including its opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness
of governance arrangements and financial controls.

Annually the Committee meets formally with the external auditor and the internal auditor for independent discussions.

The current membership of the Committee consists of a minimum of 3 Lay Governors one of whom is Convenor and
one of whom may be a member of the Finance and General Purpases Committee. The Convenor of the Finance and
General Purposes Committee is in attendance. Whilst the Director of Finance and Estates and Deputy Director of
Finance attend meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee, they are not members of the Committee.

The Development & Fundraising Committee was established to ensure integrated operation of senior management
within RCS and the Board of Governors to achieve revenue and capital targets outwith routine revenue streams. Its
duties are to:

e support actively the delivery of revenue sources and income streams to provide scholarship;

e support actively the achievement of unrestricted income; and

e support actively the delivery of capital projects covering both Renfrew Street and Speirs Lock.

The Committee acts as the liaison with the current International Advisory Board (to be renamed in due
course); develops relevant processes, projects, budgets and timescales; and reports quarterly to the Board of
Governors. The relevant report is generated by Director of External Relations working with the Head of Fundraising
and introduced by the Convenor. The report includes funds raised via RCS Trusts, legacies, endowments,
sponsorship, Company of Donors, commercial activities, consultancy activity and projects.

The current membership of the Development and Fundraising Committee consists of the Principal, Chair of the
Board of Governors, Director of External Relations, Director of Business Development, Head of Fundraising and up
to 5 Lay Governors appointed by the Board of Governors (one of whom is elected Convenor).

The Health, Safety & Well-Being Committee oversees the governance of health, safety and well-being, Child
Protection and Prevent as well as promoting a culture of wellbeing within RCS. Its duties are to:
e present an annual report to the Board of Governors which includes certification that the institution has
discharged its duties and responsibilities in relation to health, safety and well-being;
» set the strategic direction of health, safety and wellbeing and Child Protection within the institution and
monitor progress;
e receive and consider recommendations on the implementation and monitoring of PREVENT
legislation across RCS;
e raise awareness of Health and Safety across RCS and promote a culture of continuous improvement;
e promote a culture of wellbeing within RCS;
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e receive and consider recommendations to improve the health, safety and well-being environment and
practice;

e receive and consider recommendations to improve the health and well-being of staff and students,
including those pertaining to Dignity at Work and Study;

® receive departmental health, safety and well-being action group reports from across RCS and monitor
progress, which will include operational procedures and the delivery of appropriate training to staff and
students;

* receive reports on health, safety and well-being expenditure and to ensure that adequate resources are
allocated for this purpose; and

* consider accident reports and statistics and seek to reduce the number of incidents through proactive
management of the data.

The membership is comprised of a Lay Governor appointed by the Board of Governors as Convenor, RCS's Senior
Management Team, Students’ Union President, up to 2 additional Lay Governors appointed by the Board of
Governors, elected staff representative from the academic staff and academic support staff, an elected health and
safety representative from the academic trade union.

The Fair Access Committee has been constituted to raise awareness of the importance of widening access and
inclusivity in all of its aspects throughout RCS community and, in particular, to stimulate discussion of related issues
at the Board of Governors. It assists in advocating RCS'’s approach and commitment to the promotion of access and
inclusivity to a range of stakeholders, including Scottish Government; helps promote an ethos of equality and
inclusivity throughout RCS; makes recommendations to Academic Board and to the Board of Governors as the
Committee sees fit.

The Membership includes a Lay Governor appointed by the Board of Governors as Convenor, up to 2 additional Lay
Governors appointed by the Board of Governors, Academic Directors, Equality and Diversity Officer, Student
representatives and School/Fair Access representatives.

Risk Assessment and Management

RCS Senior Management Team, together with one Lay Governor, form the Risk Management Group (RMG). The
RMG has responsibility for the Strategic Risk Register which is prioritised in terms of the overall net impact each
identified risk has on the achievement of the business objectives of the institution. Operational risk registers are
maintained at departmental level so that risks are properly identified, owned and managed at all levels of the
institution. Department heads regularly attend the Risk Management Group to widen the understanding of the risk
environment across RCS management teams. The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed regularly by the RMG, the
Audit and Risk Committee and the Board of Governors.

New areas of risk and/or weaknesses identified by the RMG (which reports through the Audit and Risk Committee to
the Board of Governors) are addressed. Where opportunities to further enhance the control environment are
identified, appropriate actions are defined and completion dates scheduled, so that progress can be monitored
closely.

In summary, a suitable process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by RCS has been
in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

RCS’s Risk Management process is compliant with the terms of the Scottish Code of Good Higher Education
Governance.

The Internal Auditors of RCS assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisational governance, risk
management, internal controls and value for money. Any recommendations as a result of the internal audit are

reviewed and planned into the development of policies, internal controls and future strategic plans.

In the opinion of the Internal Auditors for the financial year, RCS has a framework of controls in place that provides
reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s governance, risk management,
internal controls and value for money.

In October each year the Board of Governors receives an Annual Report, forwarded through the Audit and Risk
Committee, which reports on the process of internal controls and risk management at RCS.

Governors’ Statement on Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Governors have considered the Annual Report and Financial Statements as a whole and consider them to be
fair, balanced and understandable and to provide the information necessary for stakeholders to assess RCS’s
performance, business model and strategy.

Institutional Sustainability

The Board of Governors monitors and enhances institutional sustainability through a number of channels. These
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include:

Strategic planning;
The setting and monitoring of budgets and future financial forecasts with the aim of producing operating
surpluses year on year;

¢ Regular reports on student recruitment and retention;
e Setting targets and receiving regular progress reports on fundraising activity from the Executive;
¢ Expansion of fundraising capacity; and
¢ Appointment of a business development director.
Reserves

RCS carries reserves to allow it to continue to support the advancement of the business through, for example,
investment in new and replacement capital equipment and the cost of development of new programmes and to
provide a buffer in the event that operating losses need to be absorbed. The Board of Governors through the Finance
and General Purposes Committee undertakes an annual review of the adequacy of reserves to support RCS'’s
operational and strategic requirements. The latest review in October 2022 confirmed that the level of reserves was
adequate for these purposes.

Going Concern

As noted in the Annual Report, RCS has produced an operating deficit for the year under review after unrealised
losses on investments. The latest information available indicates that the forecast outturn for the year ahead will also
be an operating deficit. However, taking into account current liquidity, cash flow projections, future expected cash
generation and the level of acceptances for places on programmes commencing in September 2022, it is considered
that there are adequate resources to meet RCS’s future financial commitments. There are currently long
term borrowings of £1,286,000 from RCS Infrastructure Trust which are not repayable on demand and are more than
offset by cash and unrestricted investments as set out in in the statement of cash flows and notes 12 and 14 to the
accounts. The Governors believe that RCS can manage its business risks despite the current uncertain economic
outlook and have a reasonable expectation that RCS will continue to receive adequate support from the SFC and
from RCS Trusts. Accordingly, the Governors consider that RCS will have sufficient resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial statements.

APPROVED BY THE GOVERNORS ON 28 OCTOBER 2022 AND SIGNED ON THEIR BEHALF BY

Nick Kuenssberg Professor Jeffrey Sharkey
Chair Principal
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STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Council, the
Governors are responsible for the administration and management of the affairs of RCS, including ensuring an
effective system of internal control, and are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year
which disclose a true and fair view of the state of affairs of RCS and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that
year.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are maintained which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of RCS and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, the Accounts Direction issued by Scottish Funding
Council, the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions effective
from 1 January 2019 and other relevant accounting standards.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors have ensured that:-

e Suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

¢ Judgments and estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent;
Applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; and

¢ Financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that RCS will
continue in operation. The Governors are satisfied that RCS has adequate resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future: for this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements.

The Governors have taken reasonable steps to:-

¢ Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for which they have been
given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Council and any other conditions which they
may from time to time prescribe;

e Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds and funds
from other sources;

» Safeguard the assets of RCS and hence to take reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities;

« Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of RCS’s resources and expenditure; and
Ensure sound corporate governance and the proper conduct of RCS’s operations.

The key elements of RCS's system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the responsibilities,
set out:-

s Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic and administrative
departments;

e A comprehensive short and medium-term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual income,
expenditure and capital budgets;

* Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and financial results involving variance
reporting and updates of forecast outturns;

o Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with investment decisions
involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review according to
approval levels set by the Board of Governors;

» Comprehensive financial regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, approved by the Audit and Risk
Committee and Finance & General Purposes Committee; and

e The appointment of a firm of Chartered Accountants offering internal audit services, whose annual programme is
approved by the Audit and Risk Committee and endorsed by the Board of Governors, provides them with a report
on the internal audit activity within RCS and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of RCS’s system of
internal controls, including internal financial control.

Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Impact on internal controls of COVID-19

RCS has maintained a robust governance and internal control structure throughout the year despite the disruption to
the normal business operation caused by COVID-19. The Board of Governors and its sub-committees and internal
management committees have continued to function and report as usual with full agendas through a blend of remote
and in-person meetings. The internal controls in place for the on-going financial and administrative management of
the business have been amended as necessary to accommodate remote working and have operated effectively.
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Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Governors have taken all the necessary steps to make themselves aware, as Governors, of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. As far as the Governors are aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware. The Governors confirm that, whilst the
auditors have been engaged in non-audit work during the year, sufficient safeguards have been implemented from
the audit firm to ensure that the independence of the audit was not compromised.

THIS REPORT WAS APPROVED BY THE GOVERNORS ON 28 OCTOBER 2022 AND SIGNED ON THEIR
BEHALF BY

e K

Nick Kuenssber: Professor Jeffrey Sharkey
Chair Principal
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Board of Governors of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland (the ‘RCS') for the year ended
31 July 2022 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Reserves,
the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of RCS’s affairs as at 31 July 2022, and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended:;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulation 14 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
20086.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the RCS in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the governors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the RCS's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from then the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report and the chair’s foreword, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the annual report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the terms of our engagement
In our opinion, in all material respects:

e Funds from whatever source administered by the RCS for specific purposes have been properly applied to
those purposes and, if relevant, managed in accordance with relevant legislation, and any other terms and
conditions attached to them; and

e Funds provided by the Scottish Funding Council have been applied in accordance with the Financial
Memorandum and the requirements attached to the Financial Memorandum.

e The requirements of the Scoftish Funding Council’s accounts direction have been met.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the RCS and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the annual report (incorporating the strategic report and the
directors’ report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 and the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of governors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board of Governors

As explained more fully in the governors responsibilities statement, the governors (who are also the trustees and
directors of the RCS for the purposes of charity and company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the governors are responsible for assessing the RCS'’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the RCS or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditor under section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act
2005 and under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with regulations made under those Acts.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
below.

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the RCS and the sector in which
it operates and considered the risk of acts by the RCS which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations,
including fraud. These included but were not limited to the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005,
and Health and Safety Regulations.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations
or through collusion.

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise o a material misstatement in the RCS’s financial
statements. Our tests included, but were not limited to:

31



Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring compliance with laws and regulations;
enquires of senior management and the governors; and

review of minutes from the Finance & General Purposes Committee meetings and Audit and Risk Committee
meetings throughout the period.

There are inherent limitations in an audit of financial statements and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would
become aware of it. We also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including testing
journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the RCS’s governors, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and in accordance with Regulation 14 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the RCS's governors those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the RCS, the RCS's governors as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

e

Jeremy Chittleburgh CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Chiene + Tait LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

61 Dublin Street

Edinburgh

EH3 6NL

3l /(0 2022
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Statement of Comprahensive Income for the year ended 31 July 2022

2022 2021

Note E000 ET00
INCOME
Funding body grants 2 13,244 13,797
Tuition fees and education contracts 3 10,982 10,419
Research grants and contracts a4 134 114
Other income L] 908 860
Investment Income G 280 260
Donations and endowments 7 700 181
Total Income T %248 25431
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 8 20,920 19,369
Other operaling expenses 10 6,109 4,895
Depreciation 11 904 928
Total Expenditure T 27933 25192
{DeficitySurplus before other gains and losses (1,685) 239
Loss on disposal of fixed assels ) 4)
Realised gain on investments 50 108
{Deficit)/Surplus before unmalised gafne and losses ey 34
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investments 12 (443) 562
(DafichiSurpius for the year T (@) - 906
Actuarial Galn/(loss) in respect of pension schemes 23 10,075 (225)
Total comprehenslve Income for the year 71981~ @81
Represanted by:
Endawment comprehensive income for the year 202 138
Restricted comprehensive income for the year (45) ]
Unrestricted comprahensive income for the year 7.834 538

All items of income and expenditure relate lo continuing activities
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Statement of Changes In Reserves for the year ended 31 July 2022

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

Share i it L o ( o L
Capltal {Endowmant) (Other) {Ganeral) (Pension) {Revaluation} Total
E'000 £000 £'000 E'000 £000 E'000 £'000
Balanca at 1 August 2020 :] 1,862 85 21,843 {5.824) 1,636 19,810
Surplus from the
comprehansive income and
expenditure statement - 194 116 2,295 (1.699) . 906
Other comprehensive income - - - (225) - {225)
Transiers between revatuation and
income and expenditure reserve E - (452) = 452 -
Release of restricted funds spent in
the year - {41) (110 151 -
Tranlees betwean Prize Fund - (14) = 14 - . .
and Unrestricted Reserve
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - 139 -3 2,008 (1.924) 452 681
Balance at 1 August 2021 a 2,021 2n 23,851 (7.748) 2,088 20,491
Deficil from lhe
Incoma ang
expenditure statement . 245 116 {118) (2.327) - (2,084)
Other comprehensive income - - 10,075 . 10,075
Transiers butweon revalustion and
income and expenditure reserve - 377 - {377} -
Release of restricled funds spentin
the year . {38) {161) 199 - -
Tranafers botwoan Prize Fund . (5) - .3 - -
and Unrestricted Reserve
Total comprehensive Income for the year - 202 (45) 463 7,748 (377) 7.091
Balance at 31 July 2022 8 2,223 6 24,314 - 1,711 28,482
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 July 2022
(C

No. )
022 2021
Note E£'000 £'000
Non-curmint assats
Tangibls fleed assety 1 33614 34,052
Inwestments 12 8,238 7.895
w0 aear
Curront assels
Trade and afer recervables 13 1,264 866
Investmants 14 1392 1,391
Cash and cish oquivalents 5,536 5,376
T 812 T 783
Less: Craditors - amounts falling due within one year 15 (2,920) (2.301)
Not current assets — B2iz 5332
Total assats leas curment Habilities 47122 47,279
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (18,328) (18,649)
Provislons
Pension provisions 23 - (7,748)
Other provisions 18 (312) (391}
Total net assete &z 08T
Restricted reserves
Endowmenl reserve 19 2,223 2,021
Other restricled reserva 20 226 2n
T zasw 222
Unreatricted resanies
Genural resanve 24314 23,851
Pansion resans - (7,748)
Ravaluation resenve 171 2,088
28474 20,483
Share capital 21 8 8
Total reserves 5487 0491

The financlal statsments on pages 33 to 51 were approved and authorised for Issua by the Board of Govemnors on 28 October 2022 and were signed on its behalf on that date

by:
/ %L/f/ _ _ )
L7
Professor Jefirey Sharkey Alan Smith Nick Kustrasborg
Designated Officer Director of Finance and Estates Chair



Raoyal Consarvatolre of Scotland

Statement of cash flowe for the year ended 31 July 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
{DeReityBurpls for tha yaar
Adjustment for non-cash ftems

Depreciation

Loss/(Galn) on investments
(Increase)/Decreasa in deblors
Increase/(Decrease) in credhors
(Decrease} in other provisions

Pension costs less conlribulions payable

for i or activities

Investment income

Loss on tha sale of fixed assets

Endowmenl income

Net cash Inflow from operating activities
Cash flowe from Investing activities
Proceeds from sales of fixed assels/investments
Short term investments

Investment income

Endowmenl funds invested

Funds invested
Payments to acquire fixed assals

Cagh flows from financing activities
Engowmont cash recelvad
Increase In cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents al end of lhe year

Analysis of changes in net deivt

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash

Overdrafts

Cash equivalents
Borrowlngs

Debl due within one year
Debl due after one year

Total
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2022 2021
Nots £000 £000
(2,084) 908

1" 904 928
393 (671)

13 (398) 172
15/16/17 208 (88)
18 79) (29)

23 2,327 1,699

6 (280) (260)

[ 4

(206) .

861 2,681

699 749
14 [U] -
s 280 260
12 (147) (190)
12 (1,285) @s7)
1 (a73) (165)

) 113)

206

5,376 2,808

5,536 5,376

At1 August Other non Ata1 July
2021 Cash flows cash changes 2022
E000 £000 E000 E£000
5376 0 150 5,536
5376 10 150 5,536
(66} - - (66)
{1,286) 66 S {1.220)
(1,352) 66 - (1,286)
4,024 76 150 4,250
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Matas to the Financial Statamants

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consislanlly in dealing wilh items which are considered malerial in relalion to the financial stalements

Basis of preparation
These financial stalements have been prepared in with the of Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 and in
with Financial Reporting {FRS 102} The RCS is a public banefil entity and therefore has applied the relevant public benefit requirement of FRS 102. The financial
prepared in wilh the historical cost convention, modified lo include the investments al fair value and the revaluation of cerlain musical instruments. The

presenlational and functional currency of the RCS is slerfing (£)
1. Going Concem
These financial statemanls have been prepared on a going concem basis. The Govemors have assessed the RCS's ability to continue as a going concem, as oullined more fully in the

Report of the Govemors, spacifically relating lo the impacts of COVID-18, and have reasonable expectation thal the RCS has adequate resources to continue in operalional existence for
the foreseeabla fulure. Thus they continue to adopt ihe going concem basis of accounting in preparing these financial stalements

Tangible Fixed Assets

1. Land and Buildings

The RCS's buildings are specialised buildings and therefore il is not appropriate to value them on the basis of opan markel value Land and buildings are slated in lhe Slatement of
Financial Position al cost. The main RCS heritage buildings are depreciated over lheir expected useful economic life to the institution of 100 years, The Wallace Studios which is built on
leasehold land is depreciated over its remaining useful life of 90 years (2021: 80 years). Material building i in 2017 are 3 over their expected useful
aconomic life of 25 years,

Where land and buildings are acquired wilh the aid of spacific grants or d i they are ital and i as above, Where lhe related grants come from government
bedies, there are crediled lo defered income and are released io the Stalement of Comprahensive Income ovar the expecled useful economic life of Lhe related asset on a basis
consistent with the depreciation policy. Where Lhe related grants or donalions come from other sources, these are ised in the of C ive Incoma in the period in
which Lhey are receivable,

No depreciation is charged on land or assets in the course of construction,

2. Equipment

Equipment costing less than £10,000 for a group of relaled items is written off lo the Slatement of comprehensive income in the year of acquisition, All other equipment is nommally
itali cost. Capitali i is i over its useful economic life as follows:

Fumiture, Fittings, Fixlures and Equipment 20% per annum
3 Musical Instruments

Musical instruments cosling less than £2,000 are written off lo the ive income and it account in the year of acquisition. All other musical instruments, with the
excaption of cerlain slringed instruments and pianos, are nomally capilalised at cost.

Stringed instruments with a value of £2,000 and above warn revalued as ol July 2019 as assessed by Mr David Raltray, an extemal professional valuation expert. These stringed
instruments ware originally brought ants tha Statemant of Financial Position at valuation, thers is therefore no hislorical cost associaled with these assats. A revaluation will ba carried
out again in 2024,

Tha John Webb Brass kmbrumen collection was revalued by Dr Graham Wells in 2020, an axternal professional veluation expart These brass instruments ware originally broughl onlo
the Slatement of Financial Position at valuation, there is ihitifase no historical cosl associaled with these assals. A revaluation will be carried out again in 2025.

A review for impairmenl of a fixed asset is carried oul if evenls or changss in circumslances indicate that the carrying amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Capitalised musical i are i over their useful economic life as lollows:
Stringed instrumants 1% per annum
Other musical instruments 10% per annum

Itis not possible (o disclosa the historical cost and depreciation for the slringed or brass instrumants as this relales (o denated items,which do not have a cost attached to them
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Notas to the Financial Statemants (¢ontinued)

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments

Listed invastments held as fixed assats are held al fair value with movements recognised in the Surplus or Deficit for Lhe year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafis. Deposits are repayabls on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours withoul penalty,
Cash equivalents are short tarm, highly liquid investments that are readily canvertible lo known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value

Provisions

Provisions are necoghised when the insbiulion haa a prosent legal or constructve obiigation as a result of a past avanL, it is probable Lhat a ransfer of economic benefit will be required to
saftie the obligation and a reliable exfmats can be mada of the amount of g abbgation

Recognition of Income

avsnUe granis 0 funding | Block grang and rch g Ir income over the perieds in which the RCS recognises the relaled costs for which
he grani i intended 1o apital grants s i l\ incoma ovir the expected useful life of the asset. Where part of a government grant is deferred it is
tecogrised as deferred incomo within creditors and aliscaied betwaen creditons due within ang yoar and due afar moes thah ono year as

Revenue and capitnl granis [including resesrch grants) from non govermmant sourmes am recognised In income when the RCS is enttied 5o the incoms and perfonmonce related
conditions have been mel. Income received in advance of utated being mat is s delgrred incoma within creddors on the Slatement of Finansisl
Pasition and released to income as the conditions are meL Deferred income will ba allocaled between creditors due within one year and due aRer more than one year as appropriale

Tuition fee and educalion contract income is recognised in the year Lo which it relates. Income from invesiments, including tax credits, is recognised on a receivable basis.

Non exchi ans witheut lated 2 d and and with donar imposed rostrictians are recognised in income
when the RCS & enbiiod to the funds, Incorme is retaited within Lhe restvicied reserve until such ime thai it ks ut#sed In Ene wilh such resticlions at whseh  peint tha incoma is ralepset o
general reserves through a reserve fransfer,

Donations with no reslnchans are recognised in income when the RCS is entitied lo the funds,
and of is recorded in income in Lhe year in which il arises and as either restricted or unrestricted income according lo the terms of he reslriction
applied lo the individual endowment fund

There are three main types of donations and endowments idenlified within reserves:

1. Restricled donations - the donar has specified Lhal the donation must be used for a particular objeclive

2. Restricted expendable endowments - Lhe donor has specified a particular objective and the RCS has Lhe power to usa the capital

3. Restricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified thal the fund is to be permanentiy invested lo generate an income stream to be
applied to a particular objective.

Maintenance of Premises

The RCS has a ralling long-term maintenance plan, which forms he basis of lhe on-going mainienance of the estale. The cost of long-lerm and routine comective maintenance is charged
tothe ive income and litura accounl as incus
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Notes to the Financlal Statements {continued)

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Pension Cosis

The RCS participales in three pension schames two of which provide benefils based on final pensionable pay, lhe Strathclyde Pension Fund and Scottish Teachers Pension Schema.
Both of these schemes are available to staff of more than one employer, are contracled oul of the Stale Eamings-Relaled Pension Scheme, and lhe assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of lhe RCS The Funds are valued by actuaries, the rales of conlributions belng determined by the trustees on lhe advice of lhe actuaries. The schemes are

accounted for under Financial Reporting Slandard 102. The third pansion scheme is a defined ion scheme; The Universilies and Calleges i Savings Scheme
{UCRSS), This scheme i available i sl staft.

Strathclyde Pension Fund
Tha schame is a defined benefil scheme.

Pansion scheme assels are measured using market values For quoled sacurilies the current bid price is laken as al the financial year end. Pension scheme liabililies are measured
using a projecied unil melhod and discounlted at the currenl rate of ralurn on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent lerm and currency to the liability.

The pension scheme surplus (to lhe exlenl that it is ar deficit is i in full. The in the scheme it is laken lo the ive income and
axpenditure account. The actuarial gains and losses are shown in the of ive income and i

Scorgh Tenchers' Pension Scheme

The RCS also parlicipales in the Scottish Teachers' Pension theme The scheme is available to sla" of mare than one employer and il is not possible o identify each pariicipating
institution’s share of the underlying assets and liabililies on a and basis. the RCS has unllssd the pl’UVISID"S of FRS 102 whereby the contributions to
the scheme are accounted for as if it were a defined confribution schems. The cost recognised within the RCS's income and i is equal to the

contribution payable lo Lhe schema for the relevant accounting period

The RCS also provides enhanced pansions lo former employees who accepled early retiremenl and provision is made on an actuarial basis for the liability to those former employeas al
Ehe Bime of thai rtiral

Taxation Slatus

The RCS is a charity within the meaning of the Charities and Truslee Investmenl (Scotland) Acl 2005 and as such is a charity within the meaning of Para 1 of Schedule 6 to the Financa
Acl 2010 and is recorded on the index of charitiss mainlained by lhe Offica of the Scoltish Charity Regulalor {Charity No. SC015855), Accordingly the RCS is potentially exempt from
taxation in respecl of income or capilal gains received within categories covered by section 4768-488 of the Carporalion Tax Act 2010 (CTA 2010} {formerly enacted in Section 505 of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (ICTA)) or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 lo the exienl that such income or gains are applied to exclusively charitable

purposes,

Operaling Leases

Operating leases rentals are charged (o the Slalement of Comprehensive Incame on a straight line basis over the lease term,
Cancassionary Loans

Concessionary loans are recognised al the monelary value received, are interest free and are made wholly lo advance the charitable purposes of the RCS,

Reserves

Reserves are dassified as restricted or unrestricted. Resticted endowment reserves include balances which, through endowment to the RCS, are held as a parmanently restricted fund
which the RCS musl hold in perpeluity,

Other restricted reserves include balances whera the donor has included a specific purpose and therefore the RCS is reslricled in use of these funds.
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Kales 1o the Financial Statements (continued)
STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Insbuments

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recognised when RCS becomes a parly {o the isions of the i

Financial liabilities and equity i are classified ing to the of the entered inlo, An equity instrument is any conlract thal evidences a

residual inlerest in the assets of RCS after deducting all of its liabilities

{1 Financial aasots avd fabibus

All financial assets and liabilities ara inilially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), except for thase financial assets classified as al fair valus thmugh proﬁk or loss,

which are inifially measured at fair value (which is nommally the ion price excluding ion costs), unless the a final an
a financing ion, the financial assel or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted a!a marke! rate of interest for a

similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the stalement of financial position when, and only when there exists a legally enfarceable righl lo sel off the recognised amounts and RCS
intends aither {o satils on a nel basis, or to realise the asset and settle (he liability simultaneously.

Debt instruments which mest Lhe following conditions of being ‘basic' financial instruments as defined in paragraph 11.9 of FRS102 are subsequently measured al amortised cost using
Ihe afective intonrst mathod.

Debt instruments thal have no slated interest rate (and do not constitute financing lransaclion) and are classified as payable or receivable within one year are initially measured at an

and

The RCS prepares its financial stalements in accordance with FRS 102 as issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council, the application of which often requires judgements lo be made
when formulating Lhe financial position and results. Under FRS 102, lhe Governors are required (o adopt those accounting pullcles most appmpnale fo the circumstances for the purpose

of presanting fairly the RCS’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows, In ining and applying policies, ji is often required in respect of ilems
where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumplion lo be followed could malerially affect the reporled results or nat assst posilion of the RCS; it may later be
determined thal a different choice would have been more appropriate. Management considers that certain ing eslimales and i relating lo the pension cosls and Fixed

Assets are ils critical accounting estimales,

A discussion of these critical accounting estimales is provided below.

has di: its eritical ting eslimates and i It with its exiemnal auditors, its Finance and General Purposes Committee and its Audit Committee,
Eixed Assets

Land and Buildings at the Wallaca Studios are presently depreciated over the duralion of the remainder of the leasehold which is 90 years Material building improvements at Renfraw
Street are presenlly deprecialed over their usaful lifa of 25 years

Banaign comy

In relation to the cost i with ip of the Pension Fund the RCS makes estimales in relation to the assumplions which the scheme acluary applies lo the
annual valuation of the assets, liabilities and charges and which can have a material bearing on the figures
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Notes to the Finanelal Stalements (continued}

FUNDING BODY GRANTS

SFC

Recurrent grant for teaching

Research development foundation
Research postgraduate grant

Specific initiative granis:

Disabled student premium

University innovation fund

Daferred capital grants released in year:
Bulldings

Equipment

TUIMON FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS

Seotland home domicde leas

EU domidiia fees

RUK domicile fees

Non-EU domicile fees
Non-credit baaring course fees *
Education contracts

Other {reglstration and resit fees)

Total

* relates lo Shorl Courses and Junior Conservatoire programmes

RESEARCH GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

Miscallanaous research grants and contracts

OTHER INCOME

Income from front of house

Govemment grants (Coronavirus Job Retantion Scheme)”

Sundry income

European funded projects

RCS works

QAA income

‘Widening access to the crealive induskries grant

a1
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2022 2021
£000 £'000
12,221 12,789
266 265

76 5

54 53
372 360
253 253

2 2
13,244 13,797

2022 2021
£'000 E'000
441 343
597 468
2,094 2,034
4,144 4,402
2333 1,738
1111 1.148
262 284
10,982 10.418
2022 2021
£900 £000
134 114
2022 2021
£'000 £000
115 1

- 227

527 an
141 21
56 19

6 [:]

63 63

08 660
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Notes to the Financlsi Statemerits (cantinuod)

INVESTMENT INCOME

Investmenl income on endowmenls
Other investment income
Bank inlerest

DONATIONS AND ENDOWMENTS

Unrestricted donations
Resticied donatons

Annual Report for tha Year Ended 31 July 2022

2022

61
216

8k

258
432

700

2021
E'000

181

Restricled donalions of £66K (2021 - £66K) relate te the redevelopment of part of the Renfrew Sireet Campus building, £50K (2021 - £50K) funding from the William Grant Foundation lo
davalop outrmach work, £88K hundeng from Professor Richard Rose (2021; EN) 1o supporl a number of specific projects and programmes across he Conservaloire and £200K frem Louis

Sleme (2021: ENil) to suppadt the krpact and Intardrsiofinanty of the Piomch Nateork.
Unreslricled donations includa the donalion of a Sleinway Piano to the value of 150K

STAFF COSTS

The average number of as futl-ime equi was:

Senior managemenl

Teaching staff

Teaching suppor

Research grants and conlracts
Other supporl services
Administration and cantial sencos
Pramises

Other income generating activities

Staff costa for tha sbove porsona:

Wages and salaries
Social security cosls
Pension contributions paid
Perision et service cost
Other staff costs.

Senior management

Teaching slaff

Teaching supporl

Research grants and contracts
Other support services
Administraton and contral services
Premises

Olher income genarating activiies

Govitnon® salardes{included tharein)

Salaries(stafl membars)
Pension conlribulions

The number of Govemars accruing benefils under pension schemes during the year was 5 (2021: 5)

42

23

2022
Number

10

29

19

51

44

|

2021
Number

10
190
30

18

52

08

13,979
1,222
2,454
1,607

107

B

1,093
10,675
1,403

1,341
2,826
1,503

20

19,369

351
77
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Motes to the Financial Statemants (continued)

STAFF COSTS (continued)
Koy managemant parsannel
Key are the senior leam who have authority for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the RCS. Key management personnel comprise:
the Principal; Deputy Principal; Director of Finance and Estales; Direclor of Human Resources; Director of Fair Access; Director of Music; Direclor of Drama, Dancs, Production and Film;
Direclor of Extenal Relations; Director of Business Development; Director of Research and and the i i Sacretary. Slafl cosls including
ion paid to key as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Tolal {inchuding salonids, social socufily costs and othar bonafits) 1,166 1093
The Chair and other non-siafl Govemors received no remuneration, The Principal, who is also Lhe highest paid Govemnor, recaived emoluments of:

2022 2021
Principal £'000 E'000
Salary 148 146
Pannion cantributions 34 33
Benefits in kind® ] 5

188 184

Accrued pension as al 31 July 20 17
Accrued lump sum as at 31 July 59 50

* Benefits in kind relate to privale medical insurance

The ralio of lhe remuneration of the Principal lo the median salary of a RCS staff member is 3,19 (2021: 3,19). The ratio including salary, benefits in kind and pension is 3 29 {2021:
3.28).

The number of receiving ing pension ibuti falls into the following ranges:
2022 2021
Number Number
Nit 18 19
£10,001 - £20,000 2 1
£30,001 - £40,000 1 =
E40,001 - £50,000 - 1
E50,001 - £60,000 1 1
EB0,001 - £90,000 1 1
£150,001 - £160,000 1 ]
There were no olher Senior receiving i ing pension ibutie above £100,000, wha are not Govemors.
TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE
2022 2021
E'000 E'000
Travel and subsistence - Board members [ -
- Staff 2 3
Hospitality - Board members 6 -
- Staff 8 3
42 €

The tolal expenses paid to or on behalf of Board members was £6K {2021 - £nil). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and hospitality costs incurred in attending Board,
Committee meetings and other events in their official capacity.
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Notes io the Financial Sistemants (continuod)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Teaching departments
Contracted-out lecturing services
Teaching support sarvices

Other support sarvices
Administration and coniral serdces
General educalion

Premises costs

Repairs, renewals and maintenance
Student residences

Other income generating activities
Agency staffing costs

Pension fund net interest

Other expenses

Other operating expenses includs:

Auditors’ remuneralion

Operaling lease rentals

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost or valuation

At1 August 2021
Addilions

Disposals
Revalualions

AL31 July 2022
Aggregate Depreciation
Al 1 Augusl 2021
Depreciation charge
Disposals
Revaluations

At 31 July 2022

Net Book Value

NBV at 1 August 2021

NBV al 31 July 2022

Annusl Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

2022 2021

E000 E'000

1,704 1.039

175 196

540 334

507 403

653 592

251 208

827 854

260 290

33 115

513 388

214 175

141 92

291 229

6,109 4,895

2022 2021

£000 £000

External Audit 18 17

FFELP Conlract 2 3

Non-audit services 3 2

Intemal audit 18 17

Other than Land and Buildings 420 250

Fum/Fixt/ Other
Freehotld Leasahold Fittings/ Stringed Musical

Buddings Buildings. i Total
E'000 E'000 £000 E'000 E'000 E'000
30,281 11,837 5,649 959 699 49,425
- & 323 - 150 473

= - (184) - - (184}
30,281 5,788 959 849 43,714
8,498 1,733 4,866 35 241 15,373
362 132 346 10 54 904

= S a7 - - (177
—BaE 1,865 5,035 45 295 16,100
21,763 10,104 7683 924 458 34,052
21,421 9.972 753 914 554 33614

The RCS building on Renfrew Street may not be seld wilhout the prior approval of the Firsl Minister of the Scattish Govemment, to whom the RCS is accountable for the proceeds of the

The Alexander Gibson Opera Schoal may not be sold without the writien penmission of Crealive Scolland. In the event of a sale or disposal, Crealive Scotland’s share of lhe proceads
shall be in dirsct proportion to the share of the project costs originally mel from the Lattery.
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Notes to the Flnancial Stalaments {continued)

INVESTMENTS

Markel value at 1 Augusl

Additions

Disposals

(Decrease)ncrease in markel value
Market value at 31 July

Listed investments

Fixed inlerest stocks
Equities

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amounts Falling due within one year:
Trade receivables
Raceivables due from students - net of provision for doubtful debts

Other recsivables
Propaymants snd secreod incomo

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Short lerm deposits

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

General Prize Piano

Fund Fund Fund Tolal Tolal
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£'000 E'000 E'000 £000 £'000
6,054 941 900 7,895 7,017
1,285 75 72 1,432 957
1) (70} 67) (648) (841)
(347) (49) (47 (443) 562
6,481 897 858 8,236 7,805
2022 2022 2021 2021

Markel Market
Value Cost Value Cost
E'000 £000 £000 £000
2191 2424 2,052 1.979
6,045 5,190 5,843 4811
8236 7614 7,895 6,790
2022 2021
£000 £'000
a3 B1
220 144
188 139
765 502
1,264 866
2022 2021
£'000 £000
1,302 1,391
1392 1,391

Deposits are held with banks and building societies operating in the London market and licansed by the Financial Conduct Autherity with less than three months maturity al the Statement

of Financlal Pasition date. The interasl rates for these depasits are fixed for lhe duration of the deposit at time of placement.

Al 31 July 2022 the weighted average interest of these fixed rate deposits was 0,06% par annum and the remalning weighled average period for which Lhe Interesl rate is fixed on these

deposits was 3 months. The fair value of these deposits was nol materially different from (he book value.
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Notes to the Financlal Statements (continuad)

CREDITORS : AMOUNTS FALUING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade payables

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income
Loans

DEFERRED INCOME

Annual Report for tha Year Ended 31 July 2022

2022
£000

378

287
2209

YT

Included within accruals and deferred income are the following items of income which have been deferred until specific performance ralated conditions hava bsen met.

Donations
Granl income

CREDITORS : AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Defarrad grant income
Loans

PUBLIC BENEFIT ENTITY CONCESSIONARY LOANS

Amounts reqyable within ane year

Amounts repayable betwaen one and two years
Amounts repayable batween three and five years
Amounts rapayable in five years or more
Amounts repayable after more than one year

Total public benefit entity concassionary loans

Lender
RCS Infrastructine Trust

2022
£'000

a7
255

292

02
£000

17,108
1,220

18328

2022
£000

132
1,021
1,220

1,286

Interast rate
Amounl Term %

£1,885,000 2042 NIl

2021

1
330
1.6%4

2,301

2021
E'000

2021
£000

17,363
1266

18 649

2021
£'000

133
1,087

)

1,352

Borrowar

RCS
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PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Balance at 1 Augus| 2021
Decrease in provision
Paid/meleased

Balance al 31 July 2022

A valualion of Lhe existing pension provision was carried out al 31 July 2022 by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries.

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - PERMANENT

Balance at 1 August 2021
Capital
Accumulated income

Income

Funds introduced
Investment income
{Loss)oain on sale of investiments

(D in value of i

Expenditure

Prizes

Transfar o unsesincied roseres
o meet expenditure incurred
Management fees

Transfar botween Prize Fund
Balance at 31 July 2022

and Unsetricted Resene

Represeniled by:
Capilal

Accumulaied income

Analysis by asset
Curmrent and non-cumenl asset investments

Louis Sterne 1o support the impact and inlerdisciplinarity of the Pibroch Network.
Prize Funds are held in lrusl and are used to make prizes to students at the RCS,
The Piano Fund consists of capital gifts, the income from which contribules towards Lhe leasing costs of the RCS's flest of pianos.

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2022

Pensions

£000

391

(37

(42)

- 312

Prize

Louis Steme Fund Prize Fund Piano Fund 2022 -
Capilal Capital Income Capilal Total Tolal
E'000 £000 £'000 E'000 £'000 £000
- 874 - 909 1,783 1651
- - 232 - 232 222
- 874 232 909 2015 1873
200 = 6 B 206 -
- - 31 31 62 60
6 - ) 1 26
- (49) - @7 (96) 133
200 831 269 888 2,188 2,092
. - (18) - (18 a7
. - - 22} ) (38}
T = 4 @) @ (8)
= 5) - = (5) a4
200 826 247 862 2135 2015
200 826 - 862 1,888 1,783
- - 247 - 247 232
200 626 247 862 2,135 2,015
200 826 247 862 2,135 2,015
200 826 247 862 2,135 2,015
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Notsa to the Financlal Statements {continued)
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ENDOWMENT FUNDS - EXPENDABLE
2022 2022 2022 2021
Professor
Richard Rose
Fund Instrument Fund Total Total
E'000 E'000 £'000 E'000
Balance al 1 August 2021
Incoma - 6 6 9
- 6 6 9
income
Funds/eapilal introduced 98 - o8 -
Investment income - = - -
EL) 6 104 9
Expenditure
Transfer to deferred capital granl 3 - - -
Transfer to unrestricted reserves lo meel expenditure incurred (15) ) (16) (3)
Balance at 31 July 2022 83 5 88 6
Represenled by:
Accumulated income a3 5 - ]
83 5 88 [
Analysis by assel:
Cash and cash equivalenls 83 5 88 6
83 5 88 6
Tha Professor Richard Ruse Fund is to maintain and/or enhance activities within the Departmants of Opera Ballet, Traditional Snng and Jazz,
Fund two ions which have been made to fund the purchase of two of brass and
RESTRICTED FUNDS
RCS
Infrastructure The Roberison 2022 2021
Other Trust Trust Tatal Tatal
E'000 £000 E'000 E'000 £'000
Balance at 1 Augusl 2024 82 - 189 2n 265
income
Funds/capital inlroduced 50 66 - 116 116
Expenditure
Release of restricted funds spent in the year {B5) {66) (10) {161) (110}
Tolal resiricled comprehensive income for the year (35) - {10) (45) 6
Balance al 31 July 2022 a7 - 179 226 271
Other includes The Bruce Mullar Memonal Trust prowdmg financial assitance 1o emeqging creadve artists, The Wiliam Grant  Student E: : and Skills
through and Qutreach and John Mather Faumm for the purchase of equipment and suppart ola numb.rnf uﬂuwmmm.
The donation from lhe RCS Infrastructure Trust was used in support of a capilal development.
The Robarison Trusl funds represant a donation which was used in supporl of a capital devalopmant.
SHARE CAPITAL
2022 2021
£ £
duthociod.
15,000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each 15,000 15,000
[ [t
7,284 Ordinary Shares of £1 each 7.284 7,284
Aloned and ietgsd
300 Ordinary Shares of £1 each 300 300
7,584 7.584
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Hotow to the Financisl Statements (continuad)

LEASE OBLIGATIONS
2022 2024
Musical

Student Inslruments/AV Toll L
E'000 E'000 £000 E'000

Future minimum lease payments due:
Not later than 1 year 1,216 473 1,689 1,358
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4,864 1,397 6,261 5431
Later than 5 years and not later than 10 years. 3648 - 3,848 5,997
Tofal lease payments due 9,728 1.870 11,564 12,786

Studant accommedation

The Royal Conservaloire of Scolland has a lease arrangement with BASE Glasgow OpCo Lid and acts as an adminisirator in relation lo studenl accommodation rental income in a
private build sludent accommedalion facility al McPhater St, Glasgow and underwrites any shortfall in the annual rent Total rental income from sludents for the year was £1,137K and
tolal renl due was £1,170K leaving a balance due to BASE Glasgow Ltd of £33K. The lease is for a period of 20 years commencing on 14 Septemnber 2020 with a break oplion
exercisaable by RCS after 10 years.

2022 2021
Fono [a]
Renlal Income 1,137 1,146
Rental costs 1,170 1,261
Nel costs (33) (115)

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The RCS's emplayees balong to lhree principal pension schemes; lhe Scottish Teachers' Pension Scheme (STPS), Local Governmenl Pansion Scheme administered by the Stralhclyde
Pension Fund (SPF) which are of the defined benefit type, and a defined conlribution scheme - The Universities and Colleges Retirement Savings Scheme (UCRSS).

The RCS also makes pension payments lo former employees who have taken early retirement

The tolal pansion cost for the year was :

2022 2021
E'000 E'000
Contfribulions to STPS 1,452 1,379
Contributions to SPF 3,253 2,857
Contributions to UCRSS 1 1
4,706 407
(Decrease)increase in pension provision (37} 14

—_aeea a4t
The actual cost of contributions paid by the RCS during the year (o the SPF was £1,067K
There were no outstanding contribulions payable al 31 July 2022

Scottish Teachers® Penslon Schems

The RCS participates in the Scottish Teachers‘ Pension Schema. The scheme is an unfunded slatutory public service pension schema with benefits underwritlen by Lhe UK GovemmenL
The scheme is financed by payments from employers and from those curent employees who are members of the schema and paying cantributions al progressively higher marginal rales
based on pensionable pay, as specified in the regulations. The rate of employer contributions is sel with reference to a funding valuation undertaken by the schema actuary, The last four-
yearly valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2016. This valualion informed an increase in the employer contribution rate from 17 2% to 23% of pensionable pay from September 2019
and on anficpated yield of @ 4% employsrs contnbutons.

The RCS has no liability for other figalions lo the multi-employer scheme. As tha scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or surplus ta distribute on the wind-up of the
scheme or withdrawal from (he scheme. The scheme is an unfunded mulli-employer defined benefil scheme.

Itis accepted that the scheme can be trealed for accounting purposes as a defined contribution scheme in circumstances where the RCS is unable to idenlify its share of Lhe underlying
wasets and kabinbes of the

The employer contribution rale for the peried from 1 April 2020 is 23% of pensionable pay. The employee rate applied is variable and is anticipated to provide a yield of 9.4% of
pensionable pay.

While a valuation was carried oul as al 31 March 20186, it is not possible {o say whal deficil or surplus may afiect fulure contributions Work on the valualion was suspanded by the UK

Govemnment pending the decision from the Courl of Appeal (McCloud (Judiciary scheme)/Sargeant (Firefighters' Scheme) cases) that held that the lransitional pmtachons provldad as
parl of the 2015 reforms was unlawfully discriminaled on lhe grounds of age. Following consullation and an announcemenl in February 2021 on proposals to remedy the

the UK Governmenl confirmed thal the cost control elemant of the 2016 ions could ba The UK has also asked the Govemment Actuary to review whether,
and to what exlenl, the cosl conlral mechanism is meehng its cnglnal objectives, The 2020 actuarial valuations will take the report's findings into account. The interim report is complete
{restricted) and is cumently being finalised with a thesa ths UK that curent employar contribution rales would stay in force
until 1 April 2024

The RCS's level of participation in the scheme is 0.2% based on o of amplopar paid in 2020-21.

Strathclyde Potinion Fund

‘The Strathclyde Pension Fund provides benefits on final i salary for of local and some other institulions.

The fund is valued every lhree years by a professionally qualified independent actuary using Lhe projecied unit melhod, with the mos! recent comprehensive valualion being prepared as
al 31 March 2020. The rates of contribution payable are determined by lhe SPF Board on the advice of the acluaries. In the intervening years lhe actuaries review the progress of the
scheme and prepare an inlerim valualion for the purposes of reporting under FRS 102 as at the end of July. The employer conlribulion rale for the period from 1 Augusl 2020 o 31 July
2021 was 19.3% of pay. The employee conlribution rate for the period from 1 August 2020 (o 31 July 2021 was a variable rate dependenl on the level of salary ranging from 5.5% lo
12%

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Statemenl of Financial Position dale:

Inventment Retums
2022 2021
% %
Tolal Relums from 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 1.00 22,10
Financlal assumptions
2022 2021
% %
Futute Pangion increasos 270 275
Future Salary increases 320 200
Discount rale 3s0 160
The RCS expects to contributa £1,060K to its defined benefit pansion plans in 2022/23
Mortalfty assumptions
The ining life ies used lo ine benef obligati are as follows:
Mala Female
Current pensioners 19 6 years 224 years
Future pensioners 21 0years 24,5 years
The major categories of plan assels as a parcenlage of slated plan assets are as follows;
2022 2021
% %
Equities 60 €6
Bonds 27 24
Property 1" 9
Cash 2 1
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HNaotes o the Financial Stitemonts (continued)
The fair valua of the plan assets and the relum on lhose assels were as follows:

Changes in the falr value of plan aasats, defined benefit obligation and nst llabillty

2022 Nel 2021 Net
{Liability)/ (Liabitity)/
Assals Obligalions Assal Assal
E'000 E'000 E'000 E'000
Fair value of employer assets 40,661 - 40,661 32,595
Present value of funded liabilities . 48,409 (48.409) (38,419)
Opening Position as at 31 July 2021 40,661 38,408 {7.748) 16,824}
Service Cosl
Cumenl Service Cosl - 3,246 {3.248) (2,647}
Pasl servica Cost - - - -
Total Service Cost - 3,246 (3,246) (2,647}
Nel Interest
Interest income on plan asssts 657 - 657 462
Inlerest Cost on defined benefit obligation = 798 (798) (554)
Total Nat Interest 657 798 (141) {82}
Total defined benefit cost ised in income and 857 4,044 (3,387) (2,739)
Cashfiows
Plan participants contributions 346 346 - -
Employer contributions 1,060 - 1,060 1,040
Benefits paid (527) (527) - .
Expectad closing position 42,197 52,272 {10,075) (7,523)
Re-measurements {actuarial losses)
Changes in demographic assumplions - (19,548) 19,548 (7.375)
Changes in financial assumptions - {195) 195 a1t
Other experience - 135 (135) (476}
Relum on assels excluding amounts included in nel interest (244) - (244) 6,815
Total In other i
income 244) 119,608) 15,364 1225
Fair value of plan assets 41,953 - 41,853 40,661
Presan vaive of fundod Eabiigics . 32,664 (32.664) (48,409)
Closing position as at 31 July 2022 41,853 32,664 9,289 {7.748)

“ This defined benalil assel has been restricted to £nil in the Statement of Financial Pasition as the Conservataire does nal have tha rights lo a refund or lo reducs its payments info the
pension schama

The Uni ities and Colleges

Savings Scheme

The Unéeruities and Cofleges flatinerunt Savings Schema pravices a dafined contribution pamaian schama which is upan (o all employeiss. Tha minimum peesian contribulions for both
amployer and employes is 5%, The employer will malch #n empltyees condnixifion up to 5%. Tham is na cap to the leval of employes contnbisions into the schame,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Riyal Consarvalgi of Scolland is aware of the Supreme Court ruling in July 2022 on changes 1o entillement o holiday pay. Al this stage il is not possible 1o quantify the potential
liability, nar is there cenainty thal it would fall due.,
The Rayal Consadviteine of Scotland s also in the pracess of seeking clarification around the ification of i pay. At this stage it is not possible to quantify lhe polential
liability, nor is tnars cenainty fhat it would fall due.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Due lo the nature of the RCS's i and Lhe ition of the Board of {bsing drawn from public and privale seclor organisalions in Scolland) it is inevitable that
transactions will lake place with organisations in which a member of the Board of Govemors iy have aft interest, All ranasclions invalving organisaticns iy which & membar of the Boaid
of Govemnors may have an interesl are conducied at am'’s length and in accordance with the RES's financial ions and normal
The Board member and the signil related party tions with their i isali during the year to 31 July 2022 are delailed below:
Amours Amounts
Membar Organisation  Relationship Grant Received m‘b Pm o ownd from owed to
b Ry party. rolatod pany. relaled party
Chief
- Dunedin Executive
Jo Buckley and Philip Rodney Consort and Board
Member E - £ 403 E - E & £ -
Ken Fairbrother """w'g Trustee £ . £ 20066 E . £ - £ -
Leis Filch Sean Board Member £ = ' 80 £ 1,600 £ N £ .
Erskine Member of
David Hare Slewart's Goveming
mﬂ Conunrl E - £ 170 E - E - £ -
Carol Main Newdt Aris Manager E - £ 2,157 £ - £ 173 E -
i i Classical
| The List Music Editor e - 3 . AT e 100
Jeffrey Sharkey ABRSM Board Member # = € 149763 I3 12,426 ] - £ A
All members above held their posts for the full year.
DISCRETIONARY AND CHILDCARE FUNDS
June 2021
Covid 19 Covid 19
Childcare Discretionary hardship hardship Tolal
E [ 4 E E £
Balance unspent at 1 August 2021 17,716 19,852 6,550 60,309 104,527
Repaid during the year (17,716} (18,952) {6,550) - (44,218)
Allacalion received in year 7,768 33,493 - = 41,261
Expenditure {7,500} (33,761) - (59,887) (101,148}
Balance unspent at 31 July 2022 268 {268) - 422 422
Repayable as claw back 268 (268) - - =

Grants for discrelionary and childcare funds are available solely for students: the RCS acts only as paying agenL The grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the
iva income and iture account
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COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS

Mambership of the commitiees reparting lo the Board of Govemors are delailed below.

Academic Board

- Principal (Convenar)

- Deputy Principal

- Director of Drama, Dance, Production and Film
- Direclar of Music

- Director of Fair Access

- Head of Research and Knowledge Exchange

- Head of Informaten Sehvicas

- President of the Studenls' Union

= Vice Presidont of fhe Siudoats” Union

- Member elected by Lhe academic siaff from the fuli-lima academic siaff of the School of Drama,

Dance and Film

= Marmiber olected by the academic staff irom the fuil-brse academsc stalf of the School of Music

- 3 co-ophie Intemal membets 19 bo debenninged by the Acsdems: Board
= A membaor co-opted from anather academic instiution

Audit and Risk

- Minimum of 3 Lay Govemors who are nol members of lhe Finance & General Purposes

Commiltee (ane of whom is elected Convenor)

-1 Lay Govemor who may be a member of the Finance & General Purposas Commitiee, but not

Convenor

Finance & General Purposes
- Chair of the Board of Govemars
- Principal

- 5 Lay Govemors appoinled by the Board of Governors {one of whom is elected Convener)

Buildings

- The Convenor is elacled from within the membership of the Committee
- Chair of the Board of Govemors

= Principal

- Up to 3 Lay Governors appointed by lhe Board of Gavemors

= 1 External member as appraved by the Nominations Committee

Development and Fundralsing
- Principal

- Chair of the Board of Govemors

- Direclor of Extemal Relations

- Direclor of Business Development
- Head of Fundraising

- Up to § Lay Govemors appoinled by the Board of Govemors (one of whom is efected Convenar)
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Nom/inations

- Chair of the Board of Govemors (Convenor}

- Vice Chair/Senior Independant Govemor

- 1 Elected Staff Governor appoinled by the Board of Governors
- Prosiddnt of the Students’ Union

= Principal

- 2 Lay Govemors appoinled by the Board of Govermnors

Remuneration

- A Lay Governor appoinled by the Board of Governors as Canvanor
- Chair of the Board of Governors

- Convenor of the Finance & General Purposes Commiltee:

-An it Govemor it by lhe Board of

HMealth, Safety and Well-being

- A Lay Govemor appointed by the Board of Governors as Convenor
- Principal

- Deputy Principal

- it Govemor by the Board of

- Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager

- Director of Drama, Dance, Production and Film

- Director of Music

- Director of Finance and Existes

- Director of Human Resources

- Director of Extemal Relalions

- Dlirgcsor of Falr Access

- President of the Sludents' Union

- An elected slaff representalive from the academic staff

- An alected slaff representalive from lhe academic suppor staff

- An alected slaff representative from the academic trade union (E1S})

- Extemal expertise as required and appropriale

Falr Access
- A Lay Govemor appoinled by the Board of Governors as Convenor
- it Govemor by Lhe Board of

- Extemal membership as approved by the Nominations Committee
- Academic Directors

- Equality and Divarsity Officer

- Studenl represenlatives

- School/Short Courses represenlalives

IOR ATTE AT COMMITTEE THE YEAR
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* The Principal is in attendance only and is nol a member
** Attended as a guest only not a member






